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At Year End as of June 30th: 2003 ZQOZ/ % Change
Total bank assets $ 3,039,468 $2,484,310 22.3%
Trust & broker/dealer assets 2,633,356 2,500,449 5.3%
Total financial assets $5,672,824 $4,984,759 13.8%
Capital $ 201,680 $ 166,429 21.2%
Per Common Share: (1) 2003 2002 % Change
Income per share (diluted) $ 265 $ 200 32.5%
Outstanding common shares (net treasuries) 17,659 17,208 2.6%
Dividends declared {(comman) $ 9413 $ 7,840 20.0%
Book value $§ 952 $ 1713 23.2%
Stock price (as of 6/30) $ 2569 $ 20.29 26.6%
Operating Resuits: 2003 2002 % Change
Net interest income $74,470 $ 59,000 26.2%
Provision for loan losses $ 419 $ 2117 97.9%
Non-interest income $ 38,980 $ 31,250 24.7%
Non-interest expenses $ 53,656 $ 48,962 9.6%
Netincome $51,320 $ 38,451 33.5%

(1) — Related data was adjusted to give retroactive effect to stock dividends declared on the Group’s common shares.
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Another Record Year

Sparked by another outstanding

year in earnings growth, the evolution
of our corporate culture continued
unabated with greater emphasis
placed on delivering excellence in
banking, mortgage, financial, trust
and insurance services. Thanks to
those on-going efforts, Oriental is a
better bank and much more.

Net income in fiscal 2003 grew to
$51.3 million, surpassing the previous
year’s record by 33.5 percent from
$38.5 million in fiscal 2002. On a
per share basis, earnings increased
by 32.1 percent to reach $2.65 (fully
diluted), compared to $2.00 (fully
diluted) a share in fiscal 2002. (See
accompanying charts)

Moreover, most of that growth con-
tinued to come from our core profit
centers in banking, mortgage origina-
tions, financial, trust and insurance

services. Core operating income
(income before income taxes less the
net gains from sales of securities, trad-
ing and derivative activities plus non-

- interest expenses related to stock

option cancellation and other expens-
es) increased by 19.6 percent to $45.9
million in fiscal 2003, compared with
$38.4 million in fiscal 2002.

Higher Dividend Payout

Based on this solid performance, we
were able to increase our dividend
payout to shareholders during fiscal
2003 by declaring a 25 percent stock
dividend on outstanding common
shares that effectively increased the
payout by 16.4 percent, maintaining
our long-standing policy of sharing
growth as much as possible.

At the same time, our equity posi-
tion continued to improve, with stock-
holders’ equity reaching $201.6 mil-

A Message to Stockholders

José E. Fernandez
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lion, an increase of 21.2 percent from
$166.4 million in the previous fiscal
year. The increase in net income was
the main driver of growth, as well as
the increase in the market value and
corresponding unrealized gain on
investment securities available for sale.

The return on equity (ROE) for the
fiscal year was 31.33 percent, which
remains among the highest in the
industry. Based on the 2002 ROE
performance, the prestigious ABA
Banking Journal ranked Oriental
sixth among its top 50 banks in the
nation with assets of over $1 billion
in its June 2003 edition. That ranking
was the highest of any bank in Puerto
Rico. Similarly, our return on assets
(ROA) grew to 1.88 for the 12-month
period ended June 30, 2003. (See
accompanying charts)

The Keys to Success

As impressive as our recent past per-
formance has been, it is only the
beginning of what can be achieved in
the future as we continue to focus on
better ways of serving our clients.
Quality customer service, that’s the

Oriental Way. Better management of
client relationships, that’s the Oriental
Way. Investing in our people and in
new technologies, that’s the Oriental
Way. Seeking higher revenues, that’s
the Oriental Way.

The Board of Directors and the sen-
ior management are fully committed
to the implementation of the Oriental
Way and to carry it forward we have
established an aggressive team concept
that involves us all in learning new
and better ways to perform tasks and
reach objectives. At the same time, an
equitable rewards system recognizes
outstanding achievement at all levels,
encouraging greater responsibility and
accountability in meeting and exceed-
ing the requirements of clients.

U.S. and Local Expansion

This more agile and integrated man-
agement approach enabled us to look
outside of our traditional market area
for expansion with the acquisition of
Caribbean Pension Consultants, Inc.
(CPQ), in January 2003. We are
pleased to welcome Bill Hummer and
Patti Conway to our management team
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The prestigious ABA
Banking Journal
ranked QOriental sixth
among its top 50
banks in the nation...

as a result of the acquisition. They are
the president and senior vice president,
respectively, of CPC who built a highly
efficient operation, that caught our
attention because of the synergies with
the financial services we offer.

Dedicated to pension fund adminis-
tration in the United States, Puerto
Rico and the Caribbean for the past
25 years, this new subsidiary, located
in Boca Raton, Florida, promises to
provide Oriental with rational oppor-
tunities for further growth on the U.S.
mainland, as well as adding to the
administrative capacity to expand our
trust and other related businesses for
the benefit of customers in Puerto
Rico and elsewhere.

Furthermore, in order to give clients
in Puerto Rico greater accessibility to
the full range of financial services now
available from Oriental, we are plan-
ning to add 10 new financial centers
on the island in the next five years.

People Drive Profits
We anticipate that those expansion

plans will be realized in the most effi-
cient and cost effective manner possi-

ble because the Oriental Way is moti-
vating greater productivity throughout
the organization. Our people are the
backbone of the Oriental Way and their
efficient application of resources is tak-
ing us to the next level of profitability.

The primary team driving
the Oriental Way is the Executive
Commiittee, led by José Rafael
Fernandez, senior executive vice presi-
dent, who was given the additional
responsibility of chief operating officer
for taking our corporate CRM culture
to that next level.

During fiscal 2003, we recruited
several key executives with extensive
experience in banking and financial
services to further bolster our ability
to effectively apply human and tech-
nological capital.

Among them are Norberto
Gonzilez, executive vice president and
acting chief financial officer; Carlos J.
Nieves, senior executive vice president
of our financial services subsidiary;
Rafael Cruz, senior vice president for
project management; Elizabeth
Crespo, vice president for consumer
credit risk and Rene Colon, vice presi-
dent for quality customer service.
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We are pleased to have also rein-
forced our banking franchise with the
addition of Nestor Vale, who will head
our retail and commercial banking divi-
sion as an executive vice president, and
Francisco Portero, first vice president
for commercial banking. Both bankers
come to Oriental with extensive experi-
ence in their respective areas.

New Technology Investment

The reinforced management team is
being supported by the application of
a new customized computer architec-
ture that promises to significantly
improve our ability to identify and
respond to the financial needs of cus-
tomers more rapidly and effectively
across product lines, while, at the
same time, becoming more efficient in
financial management.

That on-going improvement in
information technologies will substan-
tially increase our investment in new
software and delivery systems over
the next several years. We regard this
investment to be vital to meeting our
growth objectives. By streamlining the
flow of information we maintain agili-

ty in the management and decision-
making process for the benefit of our
customers and shareholders.

In addition, more knowledge and
expanded appreciation of the alterna-
tives available is facilitating communica-
tion and rapid response between our
associates and their customers, adding

- substantial value to the advantages of

electronic transactions through the
Internet. Internet banking continues to
expand as a delivery channel for our
products and services. The expanded
application of real-time capabilities
means that our services will be available
seven days a week and 24 hours a day.

We believe this three-year invest-
ment in human and technological cap-
ital will take us to the next level of
substantial growth for our stockhold-
ers, our associates and, most of all, our
customers, who made possible the
superior performance from operations
in fiscal 2003.

Strong Operating Results
Our concentration on the most prof-

itable core business areas of banking,
mortgage origination and financial,
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We continue to
emphasize building
client relationships
based on an integrated
approach to serving
financial needs.

trust and insurance services resulted
in substantial gains from operations
during fiscal 2003.

We are now growing from a posi-
tion of strength, improving from one
record-breaking year to the next —
building relationships, refining mar-
keting strategies and moving aggres-
sively to deliver banking and financial
products that respond to the needs of
customers. ‘

Net interest income after provision
for loan losses increased by 23.6 per-
cent, growing to $70.3 million in fis-
cal 2003, compared with $56.9 mil-
lion in the previous fiscal year. Most
of that growth was derived from
accelerated lending activity, especially
in mortgage financing, that benefited
from the low interest rate environ-
ment that prevailed throughout the
year. Our total loan portfolio expand-
ed to $728.5 million in fiscal 2003,
compared to $576.8 million is fiscal
2002, an increase of 26.3 percent.

Similarly, total non-interest income
demonstrated healthy growth during
fiscal 2003, increasing to $38.9 mil-
lion, from $31.2 million a year earlier,

up 24.7 percent. Such fee-based
income is derived from trust, money
management, brokerage and insurance
services, mortgage banking activities,
bank service revenues and securities,
derivatives and trading activities.

Expanding Banking Franchise

These important revenue streams will
grow further as we continue to
emphasize building client relation-
ships based on an integrated approach
to serving financial needs. That
approach caused us to become domi-
nant in the retirement planning mar-
ket over the last 19 years and it is con-
tributing to the rapid expansion of our
banking franchise in all of its aspects.

As a result, total deposits surpassed
the billion-dollar mark for the first
time in our history, reaching $1.044
billion in fiscal 2003, an increase of
7.8 percent from $968.9 million in
fiscal 2002. Our ability to attract
deposits and build relationship bank-
ing for consumer and commercial

customers was enhanced during fiscal
2003 by aggressive marketing, a sub-




stantial investment in technology, the
remodeling of financial centers, an
expansion of the workforce and
increasing variable compensation to
encourage higher volume business.

These factors also contributed to
our ability to grow assets. Total finan-
cial assets (including assets managed
for others) increased by 13.8 percent
to $5.7 billion in fiscal 2003, com-
pared with $5.0 billion in the previ-
ous fiscal year. The increase was large-
ly due to growth in bank assets.

A Milestone Year

Fiscal 2003 was a milestone year in
positioning and defining the Oriental
Way for the future. We are energizing
the components for growth and
greater profitability We expect that
fiscal 2004 will be another milestone
year in many respects.

For one, 2004 will mark the 40th
year that the Oriental name has been
associated with serving the banking
interests of the people of Puerto Rico.
What started in 1964 as a small thrift
institution founded in Humacao, in
the eastern region of the island, has

grown into a full service financial insti-
tution serving the entire island and
markets beyond those shores.

Oriental, therefore, is one of the
most mature financial institutions char-
tered in Puerto Rico and is reaching its
prime as a customer service provider.
At the same time, it is contemporary
and forward-looking in attitude and
outlook. Each day we rejuvenate our-
selves by anticipating and fulfilling
today’ financial demands with the next
generation of skills in technology and
human resources.

That is the commitment of the
Oriental Way and we greatly appreciate
the support of our stockholders, our
associates and, most of all, our cus-
tomers, who have responded so posi-
tively to our approach in providing the
best possible financial services. Thanks
to all of you, we are a better bank. ..
and much more.

[ bt b

José Enrique Fernandez,
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
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The Oriental Way is evolving into a
sales and service culture that fosters
alertness, responsiveness and flexibili-
ty to speed up the cycle time of
processes and decisions in meeting
the total financial objectives of

our customers, making possible a
"can-do" attitude for further growth
and expansion.

The Oriental Way is empowering
people to establish beneficial relation-
ships that distinguish us from the
competition, drawing on our unique
background as a provider of financial
services. That differentiation sets us
apart from the traditional transaction-
oriented bank and enables us to focus
on satisfying the total financial needs
of customers.

Information technology is driving
the process, but ultimately people, the
clients and their advisors, determine
its effectiveness. To achieve the high-
est possible degree of effectiveness,

the Oriental Way is streamlining deci-
sion making to disperse responsibility
and accountability through more and
better teamwork at the point of sale.
We took the concept of customer
relationship management to another
level in fiscal 2003 as our managers
and associates continued to refine serv-
ice strategies. With more than 450
employees at 23-branch locations
islandwide, plus an extensive electronic
network, Oriental is at the ideal point
in its growth and development to strive
for and achieve constant improvement.
As these objectives come to fruition,
Oriental will be more widely recognized
as a financial institution with an
unmatched quality service culture.

OUR CUSTOMER-CENTERED
PHILOSOPHY

Oriental regards itself to be a service
organization above all else. As such, we
have placed the customer at the center
of everything we do in meeting the
financial objectives of our clients.

This customer-centered philosophy is
not new at Oriental. It has been evolving
ever since we began communicating

Qur customer refationship
managers work together to
deliver the most effective
financial solutions.
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with the community about our unique
integrated approach to financial plan-
ning several years ago. That process led
us to focus attention on the training of
our associates to work across product
lines — to not only cross sell, but also
to nurture relationships that meet finan-
cial needs. The Oriental Way is institu-
tionalizing that commitment.

Today, teams evaluate how that cus-
tomer-centered philosophy can best be
served. They are trained in skills and
draw on the necessary resources to real-
ize that objective.

MANAGING CUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS

The support economy that is growing
everywhere, places increasing value on
successfully managing customer rela-
tionships. The application of informa-
tion technologies is critical to that
process. At Oriental we measure per-
formance based on our ability to first
retain relationships, then to expand
relationships and finally to attract new
relationships.

These goals are closely monitored
through a series of performance indi-

cators, which determine how effective
we have been and where we need
improvement. The process constantly
seeks areas for improvement based on
the feedback we get from our commu-
nications programs.

Oriental was first to educate the
market about the importance of finan-
cial planning and we continue to place
emphasis on increasing client aware-
ness through seminars held at our
branches. Our institutional message
seeks to establish unparalleled service
for the discriminating customer.

LINKING CLIENT SERVICES
TO CLIENT NEEDS

More and more, customers have come
to expect that their financial needs
will be met at Oriental and every
effort is made to assure that they are
not disappointed.

GROWING CONSUMER &
COMMERCIAL BANKING

The AMIGA account continued to be
the most powerful product in our arse-
nal of consumer offerings during fiscal




Oriental was first

to educate the market
about the importance
of financial planning
and we continue

to place emphasis on
client awarewness.

2003. Its all encompassing nature,
combining checking, investment and
overdraft protection features, attracted

* significant growth and presented a

myriad of opportunities for establish-
ing stronger and broader customer
relationships across product lines.

The network of 23 financial centers
throughout the island increasingly
was the staging ground for building
those relationships. The facilities
underwent significant improvement
during fiscal 2003, making them
more functional and appealing to
conducting the business of clients.

Action teams at the branches are
enthusiastically building those rela-
tionships. They interact with middle
management teams that set targets,
maintain performance standards and
measure customer satisfaction. As this
teamwork expanded during fiscal
2003, their combined efforts con-
tributed to an improvement in total
deposits, which rose 7.8 percent from
$968.9 million in fiscal 2002 to
$1.044 billion in fiscal 2003 (See

"accompanying chart).

In the process, more reliable service
was linked to client needs for mort-

gage, investment, trust and insurance
products, as well as the delivery of
daily banking requirements, such as
deposit accounts and cash manage-
ment services. Bank fee income grew
to $5.9 million in fiscal 2003, com-
pared with $4.6 million the previous
fiscal year, an increase of 29.4 percent.

Moreover, Oriental’s on-going
investment in new technology has
greatly expanded electronic applica-
tion for the complete service line.
Our Internet banking services (www.
OrientalOnline.com) are integrated
to give clients easy access to their
financial history and make available
the full range of financial alternatives.

Oriental also continued to expand
its secured lending activity in fiscal
2003 by providing highly flexible
mortgage-guaranteed personal loans
that enable homeowners to use the
equity in their mortgages to finance
various consumer activities and take
advantage of the tax deduction
allowed on the interest paid on mort-
gages in Puerto Rico.

The popularity of such financing
among consumers prompted Oriental
to offer similar credit facilities to
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commercial customers. As a result,
commercial banking activity showed a
solid increase during fiscal 2003 and
our trained business relationship
managers are actively pursuing new
business opportunities, especially
among professional groups.

We feel strongly that business own-
ers in the professions can benefit from
the experience and skill of our rela-
tionship managers, who apply credit-
scoring methods that appropriately
determine risk-reward parameters.

Furthermore, as an approved lender
of the Federal Small Business
Administration (SBA), Oriental pro-
vides commercial clients with access
to various forms of financing and can
advise business owners on sources of
alternative financing for expansion
that can be accessed through our
investment banking operation.

At the same time, Oriental contin-
ues to offer credit facilities for the
convenience of its clients through the
issuance of credit cards. Oriental is
working closely with merchants and
other businesses as a point-of-sale
issuer. Likewise, merchants and other
business owners can avail themselves
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of the convenience and security of our
direct deposit and payroll accounts.

STRENGTH
BANKING

IN MORTGAGE

Mortgage lending has become the
largest segment of Oriental’s overall
loan portfolio. In fiscal 2003, mort-
gage loans originated amounted to
$357 million, compared with $305.4
million in the previous fiscal year, an
increase of 16.9 percent (See accom-
panying chart).

That growth was due to the low
interest rate environment in the mort-
gage market and the typically high
demand for new housing on the
island. Oriental consistently invests in
building relationships in the market-
place in order to expand the pipeline
of new customers. Moreover, the refi-
nancing of mortgages continued to be
an important factor during fiscal 2003
as homeowners took advantage of
built up equity for a variety of reasons.

Oriental caters to each segment of
the mortgage market by providing a
personalized, one-stop approach to

carrying mortgages from application




Oriental Group’s
Financial services sub-
sidiary casts a wide net
that encompasses
every type of financial
solution to meet the
investment demands of
customers.

to closing. That approach has become
an industry standard and is very
much a part of the Oriental Way of
building relationships.

During fiscal 2003, the mortgage
operation emphasized the expansion of
its distribution channels to maximize
market penetration. An important ele-
ment of that building process is the
development of close working relation-
ships with realtors around the island.

We also are dedicated to homebuyer
orientation through seminars, newspa-
per articles and television appearances
that have created strong client sup-
port. We regard proper orientation to
be an important factor in our ability to
attract serious and qualified mortgage
clients. Also, the application of new
technologies has made possible instant
pre-approval of mortgages in a matter
of minutes for qualifying clients.

Likewise, our mortgage officers are
well prepared to advise clients on the
best alternatives in a given interest
rate scenario. During fiscal 2003, the
mortgage operation continued the
certification program started a year
earlier. The objective of the program
is to provide our personnel with con-

tinuing education and training in all
aspects of mortgage operations. They
receive formal classroom instruction
in 16 educational modules, as well as
20 hours of retraining each year.

Notwithstanding the growth of the
mortgage market in all aspects,
Oriental continued to maintain the
highest standards for qualifying its
mortgage clients. As a result, the qual-
ity of the portfolio remains extremely
high with non-performing loans rep-
resenting 0.95 percent of total assets
in fiscal 2003.

TOTAL FINANCIAL SERVICES

Oriental Group’s financial services
subsidiary, casts a wide net that
encompasses every type of financial
solution to meet the investment
demands of costumers.

Operating out of our San Roberto
headquarters complex in San Juan and
selected financial centers, Oriental
Financial Services (OFS) connects our
financial advisors to customers around
the island, providing investment bro-
ker/dealer, trust, insurance and invest-
ment banking services.




. Total financial planning for the long
haul is the core concept that drives
the services offered. As such, invest-
ment products for retirement have
been and continue to be an important
part of the service mix.

U.S. MARKET EXPANSION

Oriental’s trust division is a recog-
nized leader in that market and the
acquisition of Caribbean Pension
Consultants (CPC), a third party
administrator of pension funds in the
United States, Puerto Rico and the
Caribbean, in January 2003 is proving
to have significant synergies for
growth. CPC is located in Boca Raton,
Florida and has been in business for
more than 25 years.

Immediately, the acquisition benefit-
ed Oriental by adding nearly $400
million to its asset base and provided
significant economies of scale in the
administration of retirement plans
under the management of our trust

division. A three-year business devel-
opment plan is in the works that will
take advantage of the foothold CPC
gives us in the U.S. market.

REVITALIZING INVESTMENT
BROKERAGE

Similarly, we expect the general recov-
ery of investment markets to revitalize
our investment broker/dealer opera-
tions. The weak or negative market
conditions that prevailed for much of
the past fiscal year had their impact
on our ability to attract investment
assets. Those adverse conditions
caused financial assets gathered by the
broker/dealer to decline to $962.9
million from $1.1 billion in the pre-
vious fiscal year (See accompanying
chart).

PIONEERING RETIREMENT
INVESTMENT

Oriental pioneered the concept of tak-
ing such financial services to the cus-
tomer through its retirement planning
campaigns that began almost two
decades ago. That approach intro-
duced a whole generation to the idea
that investing is the best way to save.
Broad market acceptance of that
concept has made the trust division a
leader in retirement planning for







more than a decade. As of June 30,
2003, the trust division and the CPC
subsidiary had over $1.186 billion in
IRAs, 401(k) and Keogh plan assets
under management, out of $1.670 bil-
lion in total assets under management.
Moreover, Oriental has consistently
obtained the best long-term rate of
return for its customers, while main-
taining the lowest cost of funds for the
institution.

That leadership position continued
to be enhanced in fiscal 2003 through
such products as the Master IRA Plan,
an umbrella program that allows
investors to allocate their IRA holdings
among the variety of retirement vehi-
cles only available from Oriental.

Among Oriental’s diverse IRA prod-
ucts, the Diversified Growth IRA (DGI)
stood out in fiscal 2003. In the fiscal
year that ended June 30, 2003, the
DGI posted a 13.5 percent gain in
value, compared to negative growth of
1.5 percent for the S&P 500 stock
index. With $328 million in assets, the
DGl represented almost half of the
total IRA assets under management as
of June 30, 2003. (See accompanying
performance chart)

Such flexibility of choice remains the
hallmark of the Oriental Way. Our on-
going program of seminars and confer-
ences throughout the island continue to
focus on how diversification is the key
to long term financial success and OFS
continues to offer the widest possible
choice of quality investment instru-
ments — from mutual funds, stocks
and bonds to annuities, IRAs and Keogh
plans that fit every financial scenario.

We structure investment strategies to
meet the particular needs of individu-
als, families, professionals and business
owners. The trust division also provides
a complete range of fiduciary and cus-
todial services for individuals, families
and businesses. That combination, cou-
pled with an expanding array of insur-
ance coverage and tailored banking
services provide the basis for expanding
value-added customer relationships.

INSURANCE GROWTH

An increasingly important element in
that total package is the potential of the
Oriental Insurance subsidiary. What
started in 1995 as an alliance to offer
annuities and lines of life insurance has
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expanded to include the distribution
of property and casualty and miscella-
neous lines for individual and com-
mercial clients. Oriental’s licensed
insurance agents partner with our var-
ious business groups to develop new
insurance business opportunities
through our financial center network.
For example, the synergies developed
with our mortgage group have led to a
majority of our mortgage clients tak-
ing property and casualty insurance
through Oriental. We expect such syn-
ergies to continue to expand across
business lines for further growth.

REALIZING INVESTMENT
BANKING POTENTIAL

Investment banking and public finance
completes the mix of financial services
available from Oriental. Established in
October 2000 as a division under the
OFS umbrella, investment banking has
the potential of becoming a more valu-
able tool in building customer rela-
tionships. The division can play an
expanding role in bringing corporate
financial planning services to our

clients, acting as financial advisor in
structuring debt and equity capital
market issues and arranging refinanc-
ings for the private sector.

Likewise, our working relationship
with Banc of America Securities, LLC,
in the underwriting and marketing of
public debt issues benefits Puerto
Rico as a whole. Our continuing par-
ticipation as a senior member of the
bond syndicate of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico resulted in our partici-
pation in over $15 billion in public
finance issues since the establishment
of the division.

Oriental also has acted as manager
or co-manager in over $600 million in
preferred stock and industrial develop-
ment bond issues. Two notable accom-
plishments during fiscal 2003 were
the designation of Banc of America
Securities as book-running lead man-
ager of the $511 million Puerto Rico
Municipal Finance Agency transaction
and Oriental’s designation as book-
running lead manager for the $162
million Puerto Rico Industrial
Development Company issue, which
closed at the end of July 2003.

Customer satisfaction is

the greatest reward Oriental
can achieve from

the services it provides.
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Risk Management
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Selected Financial Data

Five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003 (In thousands, except for per share information)

Tier 1 risk-based capital

Interest income $151,746  $141695  $120344  $126,226 $107,809
Interest expense 71,276 82,695 91,281 81,728 64,775
Net interest income 74,470 58,000 29,063 44,498 43,034
Provision for loan losses 4,190 2,117 2,903 8,150 14,473
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 70,280 56,883 26,160 36,348 28,561
Non-interest income 38,980 31,250 20,383 23,674 33,953
Non-interest expenses 53,656 48,962 39,228 40,348 35,610
Income before taxes 55,604 3911 7315 19,674 26,904
income tax benefit (expense) (4,284) {720} 1318 (108) (200)
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 51,320 38,451 8,633 19,566 26,704
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax = - (164) - -
Net Income 51,320 38,451 8,469 19,566 26,704
Less: dividends on preferred stock (2,387) (2,387) (2,387} (2,387) (350)
Net income available to common shareholders $48,933 $36,064 $6,082 $12,179 $26,354
[ Per Siere and Dividemis Daw: 200300258 2001 20002 0
Basic EPS before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.81 $2.10 $0.36 $0.98 $1.42
Basic EPS after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.81 $2.10 $0.35 $0.98 $1.47
Diluted EPS before cummulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.65 $2.00 $0.36 $0.95 $1.4
Diluted EPS after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.65 $2.00 $0.35 $0.95 $1.41
Average common shares outstanding 17,396 17139 17.245 17,583 17,945
Average potential common share-options 1,091 864 313 516 800
Average shares and shares equivalents 18,487 18,003 17,558 18,099 18,745
Book value per common share $9.52 $1.12 $4.66 $4.83 $4.69
Market price at end of year $25.69 $20.29 $13.82 $10.50 $17.54
Cash dividends declared per common share $0.54 $0.46 $0.44 $0.44 $0.41
Cash dividends declared on common share $9.414 $7.840 $7,533 $7.651 $7.369
(1) Per share related information has been retroactively adjusted to reffect stock splits and stock dividends, when applicable.
{toen End Bolnees (s @ldme @y 7 220035 002200 P000 g 1999
Trust assets managed $1,670,437 $1,382,268 $1,444,534 $1,456,500 $1,380,200
Broker-dealer assets gathered 962,919 1,118,181 1,002,253 914,900 885,800
Assets managed 2633356 2,500,449 2,446,787 2,371,400 2,266,000
Group bank assets owned 3,039,468 2,484,310 2,033,706 1,847,564 1,577,767
Total financial assets managed and owned $5,672,824 $4,984,759 $4.480,493 $4.218964  $3,843,767
Investments and loans
Investment securities $2,232,330 $1,757,435 $1,459,991 $1,179,484 $946,411
Loans and leases (including loans held-for-sale), net 728,462 576,770 462,579 597,273 565,725
Securities and loans sold but not yet delivered 1,894 71,750 14,108 - -
$2,962,686 $2.405955 $1936.678 $1.776.757 $1,512,136
Deposits and Borrowings
Deposits $1,044265  $968,850  $815538  $735041 $672,258
Repurchase agreements 1,400,598 996,869 915,471 816,493 536,226
" Other borrowings 180,000 258,200 165,000 156,500 174,900
Securities purchased but not yet received 152,219 56,195 - - -
$2,777,082  $2.280,114 $1,896,009 §1,708.034 $1,343,384
Stockholders’ equity
Equity $33,500 $33,500 $33,500 $33,500 $33,500
Common equity 168,180 132,929 79,990 84,369 82,798
' $201,680  $166429 $113,490  $117.869  $116,298
Capital ratios
Leverage capital 8.19% 1.80% 6.68% 1.49% 8.30%
Total risk-based capital 25.00% 22.10% 19.96% 29.29% 24.21%
24.48% 21.76% 19.53% 30.54% 22.95%

0.49%

1.88% 1.67% 1.15% 1.84%
Return on average common equity (ROE) 31.33% 32.47% 1.85% 18.13% 24.01%
Equity-to-assets ratio 6.64% 6.69% 5.57% 6.37% 2.36%
Efficiency ratio 51.35% 51.22% 72.06% 58.56% 53.38%
Expense ratio 0.99% 1.04% 0.85% 1.00% 0.88%
Interest rate spread 291% 2.59% 1.52% 2.43% 2.94%
Number of financial centers 23 21 20 19 19
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Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Qverview of Financial Performance
Comparison of year ended June 30, 2003 and year ended June 30, 2002:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, net income was $51.3 million ($2.65 per diluted share), an increase of 33.5% compared
with $38.5 million ($2.00 diluted per share) reported in fiscal year 2002. Net income for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, was $14.2
million ($0.73 diluted per share), an increase of 28.8% compared with net income of $11.0 million ($0.57 diluted per share) report-
ed in the quarter ended June 30, 2002.

QOriental maintains an outstanding return on equity {(net income to average common equity} and a superior return on assets (net
income to average assets) when compared to its peer group. Return on common equity (ROE) and return on assets (ROA) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 were 31.33% and 1.88%, respectively, which represent a decrease of 3.5% in ROE, from 32.47%
in fiscal year 2002, and an increase of 12.6% in ROA, from 1.67% in fiscal year 2002.

Favorable interest rate levels during fiscal year 2003 combined with management's emphasis on secured lending and non-inter-
estincome {mostly fees) from operations drove the improvements in the Group's performance. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2003, net interest income was $74.5 million, an increase of 26.2% from the $59.0 million recorded for fiscal year 2002 {see Table
1). For the quarter ended June 30, 2003, net interest income increased 8.2% to $18.2 million, compared with $16.8 million record-
ed in the quarter ended June 30, 2002,

The provision for loan losses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 increased 97.9% to $4.2 million from $2.1 million for fiscal
year 2002. The provision for loan losses increased from $425,000 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 to $1.4 million in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2003. This reflects the required reserve increase as the Group’s loan portfolio keeps its growing pace and
for the increases in non-performing loans and net credit losses.

Non-interest income {mostly fee income, see Table 2) also increased for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, growing by 24.7%
to $40.0 million from $31.3 million a year earlier. The Group’s business expansion strategy and the strong market acceptance of
its fee-based financial planning business lines have been key factors for such increase. Securities net activity income grew by
226.1%. This increase reflects market opportunities that arose and that are consistent with the Group's investment strategies.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, mortgage-banking activity revenue was $8.0 million reflecting a decrease of 8.3% when
compared with $8.7 million for the previous fiscal year. This decrease is due to management's strategy of maintaining a larger
portion of its production in portfolio instead of selling it on the secondary market, consequently deferring the recognition of the
amount of fees derived from the sale of loans. As a result of this strategy, the net loans receivable grew by 26.3% from $576.8
million as of June 30, 2002, to $728.5 million as of June 30, 2003 (see Table 4).

Non-interest expenses for fiscal year 2003 increased 9.6% to $53.7 million, compared to $49.0 million in the previous fiscal year,
see Table 3. This increase reflects the Group's growth and increases in spending related to the expansion and improvement of
its sales force, growth in the retail banking platform and continuing investment in back-office personnel, technology and infra-
structure supporting risk management processes as well as recent and future growth.

Total Group financial assets (including assets managed by the trust department, the retirement plan administration subsidiary,
and broker-dealer subsidiary} increased 13.8% to $5.7 billion as of June 30, 2003, compared to $5.0 billion as of June 30, 2002.
Assets managed by the Group’s trust department, the retirement plan administration subsidiary, and broker-dealer subsidiary
increased 5.32%, year-to-year, to $2.6 billion from $2.5 billion in fiscal year 2002. This increase is mainly due to the addition of $315
million in assets managed by the recently acquired subsidiary Caribbean Pension Consultants, Inc., a retirement plan adminis-
trator located in Boca Raton, Florida. Likewise, the Group’s bank assets reached $3.039 billion as of June 30, 2003, an increase
of 22.3%, compared to $2.484 billion as of June 30, 2002. Major contributors to this increase were the investment securities port-
folio, which increased by 27.0%, or $474.9 million, along with the loan portfolio, which increased by $151.7 million or 26.3%.
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On the liability side, total deposits increased by 7.8% from $968.9 million at June 30, 2002, to $1.044 billion at June 30, 2003, as a
result of the Group’s aggressive expansion of its banking business within its overall strategy of positioning itself as a financial
planning service provider. Total borrowings increased 25.9% from $1.255 billion at June 30, 2002, to $1.581 billion at June 30, 2003.
The increase in borrowed funds was used primarily to fund the Group’ investment and loan portfolio growth.

The Group continued its repurchasing program of common stock, reacquiring 97,000 shares during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2003 at an approximate cost of $2.2 million. Stockholders’ equity as of June 30, 2003 was $201.7 million, increasing 21.2% from
$166.4 million as of June 30, 2002. This increase mainly reflects the substantial improvement in net income, net of dividends
declared and the net gain in the mark-to-market valuation of investments available-for-sale, which was partially offset by the net
loss in the mark-to-market valuation of cash flow hedge derivative instruments.

On October 28, 2002, the Group declared a twenty-five percent (25%) stock split effected in the form of a dividend on outstand-
ing common shares. Such stock split was effected on January 15, 2003.

Comparison of year ended June 30, 2002 and year ended June 30, 2001:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net income increased to $38.5 million {$2.00 diluted per share), a 354.0%, when compared
with the $8.5 million ($0.35 diluted per share) reported in fiscal year 2001. A reduction in the cost of funds combined with man-
agement’s emphasis on secured lending and non-interest income (mostly fees) from operations drove the improvements in the
Group’s performance. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net interest income was $59.0 million, an increase of 103.0% from
the $29.1 million recorded for fiscal year 2001 (see Table 1).

Non-interest income {mostly fee income, see Table 2) also demonstrated an increase for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002,
growing by 53.3% to $31.3 million from $20.4 million a year earlier. Trust, money management, brokerage and investment banking
fees grew by 15.3%. This growth reflects the strong market acceptance of our fee-based financial planning business lines, Also,
due to favorable market conditions in fiscal 2002, the Group benefited from a net gain of $3.5 million from securities, derivatives
and trading activities, as compared to a net loss of $5.6 million in fiscal 2001.

Non-interest expenses for fiscal year 2002 increased 24.8% to $49.0 million, compared to $39.2 million in the previous fiscal year
(see Table 3). This increase is attributable to the Group’s strategy to continue to invest in new marketing, technology and human
resources that are expected to assure the Group's long-term growth in financial planning and investment services, mortgage
originations, insurance services, consumer and commercial banking and investment banking.

Total group financial assets (including assets managed by the trust department and broker-dealer subsidiary) increased 11.3%
to $5.0 billion as of June 30, 2002, compared to $4.5 billion as of June 30, 2001. Assets managed by the Group’s trust department
and broker-dealer subsidiary increased 2.2%, year-to-year, to $2.5 billion from $2.4 billion. The small increase is mainly due to the
decline of broader markets {stocks, mutual funds) experienced during fiscal year 2002. On the other hand, the Group’s bank
assets reached $2.484 billion as of June 30, 2002, an increase of 22.1%, compared to $2.034 billion as of June 30, 2001,

On the liability side, total deposits substantially increased by 18.8% from $815.5 million at June 30, 2001, to $968.9 million at June
30, 2002, as a result of the Group’s aggressive expansion of its banking business within its overall strategy of positioning itself as
a financial planning service provider.

The Group continued its repurchasing program of common stock, reacquiring 155,492 shares during the year ended June 30, 2002

for an approximate cost of $3.0 million. Stockholders’ equity as of June 30, 2002 was $166.4 million, increasing 46.7% from $113.5

million as of June 30, 2001. This increase mainly reflects the substantial inprovement in net income, net of dividends declared
and the net gain in the mark-to-market valuation of investments available-for-sale, which was partially offset by the net loss in
the mark-to-market valuation of cash flow hedge derivative instruments,

On January 29, 2002, the Group's Board of Directors declared a 10% stock dividend on outstanding common shares. Such divi-
dend was effected on April 15, 2002.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is affected by the difference between rates earned on the Group’s interest-earning assets and rates paid on
its interest-bearing liabilities (interest rate spread) and the relative amounts of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities (interest rate margin). As further discussed in the Risk Management section of this report, the Group constantly moni-
tors the compaosition and repricing of its assets and liabilities to maintain its netinterest income at adequate levels. Table 1 shows
the major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, their respective interest income, expenses, yields
and costs, and their impact on netinterest income due to changes in volume and rates.
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Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 Interest Average Rate Average Balance

{Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002¢ 200" 2008 2002 20" 2003 00 0"

A- TAX EQUIVALENT SPREAD

Interest-earning assets $151,746  $141695  $120,344 6.09% 6.54% 7.17% |$2,493,382 2,166,516 $1,677,786
Tax equivalent adjustment 52,895 28,171 35,226 2.12% 1.30% 2.10% - - -

Interest-earning assets — tax equivalent 204,641 169,866 155,570 821% 7.84% 927% | 2493382 2166516 1,677,786
Interest-bearing liabilities 71,278 82,695 91,281 3.18% 3.95% 5.65% | 2429373 2,091,738 1,614,893

Net interest income / spread $127,365 $87,171 $64,289 5.03% 3.89% 3.62% $64,009 $74,778 $62,893

B- NORMAL SPREAD
Interest-earning assets:

Investments:

Investment securities $100,905 $93,373 $75,172 5.61% 6.06% 6.75% |$1,799,458 $1,541,155 81,113,667
Investment management fees (1,443) {1,535) {1,016) -0.08% -0.10% -0.09% - = =
Total investment securities 89,462 91,838 74,156 5.53% 5.86% 6.66% 1,799,458 1,541,158 1,113,667
Trading securities 502 2,744 2,735 4.86% 6.66% 7.55% 10,332 41,186 36,223
Money market investments 296 1,068 4,691 1.93% 3.01% 5.97% 15,345 35,096 78,630

100,260 95,640 81,582 5.49% 5.91% 6.64% | 1.825135 1.617.437 1,228,520

Leans (1):

Real estate (2) 45,848 40,173 32,970 7.54% 8.11% 8.20% 608,189 495,631 401,916
Consumer 2,682 3123 3,008 13.82% 14.49% 15.41% 19,404 21,549 19,517
Commercial 2,958 2,757 2,375 7.31% 8.80% 10.36% 40,477 31,345 22,926
Financing leases (3) {2) 2 409 -1.13% 0.36% 8.34% 177 554 4,907

51,486 46,055 38,762 7.70% 8.39% 8.63% 668,247 549,079 449,266
151,746 141,695 120,344 6.09% 6.54% 717% | 2,493,382 2,166,516 1,677,786

Interest-bearing liabilities:

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 56,263 48,190 44571
Now Accounts 1,054 1,511 940 1.69% 3.19% 4.29% 62,436 47,364 21,928
Savings 1,318 1,850 2,186 1.55% 2.30% 2.85% 84,874 80,400 76,658
Time and [RA accounts 31,284 30,227 33,516 3.83% 4.33% 5.89% 816,197 697,546 569,415
33,657 33,588 36,642 3.30% 3.85% 514% | 1,019,770 873,500 12,572
Borrowings:
Repurchase agreements 17,362 23,883 46,727 1.50% 2.39% 5.91% | 1,158,243 998,069 790,498
Interest rate risk management 16,141 15,551 1,141 1.39% 1.56% 0.14% - - -
Financing fees 331 255 179 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% - - -
Total repurchase agreements 33834 39,689 48,047 2.92% 3.98% 6.08% | 1,158.243 998,069 790,498
FHLB funds and term notes 7918 8,306 6,592 3.66% 4.12% 5.90% 216,360 201,469 111,823
Subordinated capital notes 1,867 1,112 - 5.33% 5.95% - 35,000 18,700 -
43,619 49,107 54,639 3.09% 4.03% 6.06% | 1409603 1218238 902,321
11,276 82,695 91,281 3.18% 3.95% 5.65% | 2429373 2091738 1,614,893
Net interest income / spread $74,470 $59,000 $29,063 2.91% 2.59% 1.52%
Interest rate margin 2.99% 2.72% 1.73%
Excess of interest-earning assets over
interest-hearing liabilities $64,009 $74,778 $62,833
Interest-earning assets over interest-hearing
liahilities ratio 10263%  10357%  103.89%
C. CHANGESIN NET INTEREST INCOME DUE TO (4): Fiscal 2003 versus 2002 Fiscal 2002 versus 2001
Interest Income: Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Loans {1) $9,404 $(3,973) $5,431 $8,399 $(1,106) $7,293
Investments 11,720 {7,100 4,620 ' 23,724 (9,666) 14,058
21123 (11,072} 10,051 32123 (10,772) 21,351
Interest Expense:
Deposits 5,193 (5,124} 69 7,289 (10,343) (3,054)
Repurchase agreements 7,006 {12,861} (5,855} 14,499 (22,857) (8,358)
Other borrowings 1,261 (894) 367 5,021 {2,195) 2,826
13,460 {18,879) (5,419) 26,809 (35,395) (8,586)
Net Interest Income $7,663 $7,807 $15,470 $5,314 $24,623 $29,837

* Certain adjustments were made to conform figures to current period presentation.

(1} - Loans fees amounted to $2,333, $1,862 and $857 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

{2) - Real estate averages include loans held-for-sale.

(3) - Discontinued in June 2000.

(4) - The changes that are not due solely to volume or rate are allocated on the proportion of the change in each category.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, net interest income amounted to $74.5 million, up 26.2% from $59.0 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002, This increase was due to a positive volume variance of $7.7 million and a positive rate variance of $7.8
million that also, in part, resulted from the impact of an additional Federal Reserve Board's interest rate reduction, which result-
ed in a lower average cost of funds (3.18% for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2003 versus 3.95% in the same period of fiscal
2002). The Group continues its hedge strategy to lock its interest spread by increasing the volume of interest rate swaps; see
“Interest Rate Risk and Assets/Liability Management”.

The interest rate spread for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, rose 32 basis points to 2.91% compared with 2.59% for fiscal
2002. As previously mentioned, this increase was mainly due to a decrease in the average cost of funds. Table 1 shows the major
categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, their respective interest income, expenses, yields and
costs, and their impact on net interest income due to changes in volume and rates.

The Group’s interest income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 increased 7.1% from $141.7 million reported in fiscal 2002, to
$151.7 million. The increase in interestincome resulted from a larger volume of average interest-earning assets {$2.493 billion in
fiscal 2003 versus $2.167 billion in fiscal 2002) partially offset by a decline in their yield performance (6.09% in fiscal year 2003
versus 6.54% in fiscal year 2002).

Increase in interest-earning assets was concentrated on the investment portfolio and real estate loans, comprised mostly of res-
idential mortgage loans. The average volume of total investments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 grew 12.8% ($1.825 bil-
lion in fiscal 2003 versus $1.617 billion in fiscal 2002) when compared to the same period a year earlier. This increase was con-
centrated in mortgage-hacked securities, which increased 25.1% from $1.673 hillion as of June 30, 2002, to $2.093 billion as of
June 30, 2003. Likewise, the average volume of real estate loans grew by 22.7% for fiscal 2003 {from $495.6 million in fiscal 2002,
to $608.2 million in fiscal 2003), along with an increase in the average volume of commercial loans that grew by 29.1% in fiscal
2003, when compared with the same period in fiscal 2002 {$40.5 million in fiscal 2003 versus $31.3 million in fiscal 2002.) Most of
the commercial loans are secured by real estate.

The average yield on interest-earning assets was 6.09%, 45 basis points lower than the 6.54% in fiscal 2002. The yield dilution
experienced in fiscal 2003 was caused by the expansion of the Group’s mortgage-backed securities investment portfolio, which
carries a lower yield than the loan portfolio but provides less risk and generates a significant amount of tax-exempt income (see
“Tax Equivalent Spread” on Table 1).

Interest expense continues to step down for fiscal year 2003 decreasing by 6.6% (to $77.3 million in fiscal 2003, from $82.7 miliion
in fiscal 2002). A lower average cost of funds (3.18% for fiscal 2003 versus 3.95% for fiscal 2002), drove this decrease. Larger vol-
umes of borrowings and deposits, which were necessary to fund the growth of the Group’s investment portfolio, caused an
increase in average interest-bearing liabilities. See Table 1 for the impact on interest expense due to changes in volume and
rates.

The cost of short-term financing decreased substantially during fiscal 2001 and 2002 and continued to fall over the course of fis-
cal 2003. The average cost of borrowings for fiscal year 2003 decreased 94 basis points {from 4.03% in fiscal 2002, to 3.09% in fis-
cal 2003). The largest average reduction was in repurchase agreements, which decreased 106 basis points from 3.98% in fiscal
2002, to 2.92% in fiscal 2003, including hedging costs and fund management fees.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net interest income amounted to $59.0 million, up 103.0% from $29.1 miltion for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001.This increase was primarily due to a positive rate variance of $25.0 million that also, in part, resulted
from the impact of the Federal Reserve Board's interest rate drop, which resuited in a lower average cost of funds (3.95% for the
fiscal year ended on June 30, 2002 versus 5.65% in the same period of fiscal 2001). At the same time the Group continues its
hedge strategy to lock its interest spread by increasing the volume of interest rate swaps; see “Interest Rate Risk and
Assets/Liability Management”.

The interest rate spread for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, increased 107 basis points to 2.59% compared with 1.52% for
fiscal 2001. This increase was mainly due to a decrease in the average cost of funds.

Interest income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 increased 17.7% from $120.3 million reported in fiscal 2001 to $141.7 mil-
lion in fiscal 2002. This increase in interest income resulted from a larger volume of average interest-earning assets ($2.167 bil-
lion in fiscal 2002 versus $1.678 billion in fiscal 2001) partially offset by a decline in their yield performance {6.54% in fiscal year
2002 versus 7.17% in fiscal year 2001).

Maost of the increase in interest-earning assets was concentrated on the investment portfolio and on the real estate and com-
mercial loans portfolio. The average volume of total investments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 grew 31.7% ($1.617 bil-
lion in fiscal 2002 versus $1.229 billion in fiscal 2001) when compared to the same period a year earlier. This increase was con-
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centrated in mortgage-backed securities as the Group continued converting residential real estate loans sold in the secondary
market. On the ather hand, the average volume of real estate loans grew by 23.3% for fiscal 2002 (from $401.9 million in fiscal
2001, to $495.6 million in fiscal 2002), while the average volume of commercial loans grew by 36.7% in fiscal 2002, compared with
the same period in fiscal 2001 ($31.3 million in fiscal 2002 versus $22.9 million in fiscal 2001.)

Average vield on interest-earning assets for fiscal year 2002 was 6.54%, 63 basis points lower than the 7.17% in fiscal 2001. The
vield reduction in fiscal 2002 was in part caused by the expansion of the Group's investment portfolio, which carries a lower yield
than the loan portfolio but provides less risk and generates a significant amount of tax-exempt interest (see “Tax Equivalent
Spread” on Table 1).

Interest expense for fiscal 2002 decreased by 9.4% to $82.7 miliion in fiscal 2002, from $91.3 million in fiscal 2001. A lower aver-
age cost of funds {3.95% for fiscal 2002 versus 5.65% for fiscal 2001), drove the decreases. Larger volumes of borrowings and
deposits, which were necessary to fund the growth of the Group’s investment portfolio, caused an increase in average interest-
bearing liabilities. See Table 1 for the impact on interest expense due to changes in volume and rates.

The cost of short-term financing decreased substantially during fiscal 2001 and also over the course of fiscal 2002. The average
cost of borrowings for fiscal year 2002 decreased 203 basis points, (from 6.06% in fiscal 2001, to 4.03% in fiscal 2002). The largest
average reduction was in repurchase agreements, which decreased 210 basis points from 6.08% in fiscal 2001, to 3.98% in fis-
cal 2002, including hedging costs and fund management fees.

Non-Interest Income

As a diversified financial services provider, the Group's earnings depend not only on the net interest income generated from its
banking activities, but also from fees and other non-interest income generated from the wide array of financial services that it
offers. Non-interest income, the second largest source of earnings, is affected by the level of trust assets under management,
transactions generated by the gathering of financial assets and investment activities by the broker-dealer subsidiary, the level
of mortgage banking activities, and fees generated from loans, deposit accounts and insurance products.

Three-Year Period Ended June 30, 2003
(Dolfars in thousands}

Trust, money management, brokerage, insurance

and investment banking fees $14,472 $13,848 4.5% $12,013
Mortgage banking activities 8,026 8,748 -8.3% 8,794
Non-banking service revenues 22,498 22,596 -0.4% 20,807
Fees on deposit accounts 4,075 2,721 49.8% 2,162
Bank service charges and commissions 1,625 1,757 -15% 1,654
Other operating revenues 268 133 101.5% 359
Bank service revenues 5,968 4,611 29.4% 4175
Securities net gain {loss) 14,223 4,362 226.1% (1,175)
Trading net gain {loss) 571 1,149 -50.3% (484)
Derivatives net gain (loss} {4,061) {1,997) 103.4% (3,919)
Securities, derivatives and trading activities 10,733 3514 205.4% (5,578)
Leasing revenues (discontinued in June 2000) - - 0.0% 65
Gain {loss) on sale of [oans - 104 -100.0% 914
Gain (loss) on sale of premises and equipment {219) 425 -151.5% -
Other non-interest income (219) 529 -141.4% 979
Total non-interest income $38,980 $31,250 24.7% $20,383

As shown in Table 2, non-interest income for fiscal 2003 increased 24.7%, from $31.3 million to $39.0 million, when compared to
fiscal 2002. ’

Trust, money management, brokerage, insurance and investment banking fees, one of the main components of non-interest
income, increased 4.5% to $14.5 million in fiscal 2003, from $13.8 million in fiscal 2002.
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Another important component of non-interest income is mortgage-banking activities. Such income decreased 8.3% in fiscal year
2003 (from $8.7 million in fiscal 2002, to $8.0 millian in fiscal 2003}, in spite of an increase of 17.0% in mortgage loan production
(from $305.4 million in fiscal 2002, to $357.0 million in fiscal 2003). This is due to management’s strategy of maintaining a larger
portion of its production in portfolio instead of selling it on the secondary market, consequently deferring the recognition of the
amount of fees derived from the sale of loans.

Bank service revenues, which consist primarily of fees generated by deposit accounts, electronic banking and customer serv-
ices, continue experiencing a sustainable increase of 29.4% (to $6.0 million in fiscal 2003, from $4.6 million in fiscal 2002), mainly
due to a 49.8% increase in fees on deposit accounts, from $2.7 million for fiscal 2002, to $4.1 million in fiscal 2003. This increase
in bank service revenues was mainly driven by new deposits gathered by the Bank, ted by the “Amiga” demand deposit account
introduced during fiscal year 2002.

Securities, derivatives and trading activities showed a net increase of 205.4% in fiscal 2003 (to a net gain of $10.7 million in fis-
cal 2003 from a net gain of $3.5 in fiscal 2002}, mainly driven by an increase in securities and trading net activities revenues dur-
ing fiscal 2003 {from $5.5 million net gains in fiscal 2002, to $14.8 million net gains in fiscal 2003).

Securities net activities showed a 226.1% increase from a net gain of $4.4 million in fiscal 2002, to a net gain of $14.2 million in
fiscal 2003, while trading net activities revenues showed a decrease of 50.3%, to a net gain of $571,000 in fiscal 2003, compared
to a net gain of $1.1 million for fiscal 2002. This decrease in trading net activities revenues is mainly due to a substantial decrease
in the average volume of trading portfolio from $41.2 million in fiscal 2002 to an average of $10.3 million in fiscal 2003.

Derivative activities resulted in unrealized losses of $4.1 million for fiscal 2003; while for fiscal 2002 the unrealized loss amount-
ed to $2.0 million, an increase of 103.4%. These fluctuations are related to the mark-to-market of derivative instruments.

Non-interest income for fiscal 2002 increased 53.3% (from $20.4 million to $31.3 million), compared to fiscal 2001. Trust, money
management, brokerage, insurance and investment banking fees, one of the main components of non-interestincome, increased
15.3%, to $13.8 million in fiscal 2002, from $12.0 million in fiscal 2001.

The second largest component of non-interest income is mortgage-banking activities. Such income decreased 0.5% in fiscal
year 2002 {from $8.8 million in fiscal 2001, to $8.7 million in fiscal 2002), in spite of an extraordinary increase of 68.4% in the mort-
gage loans production (from $181.4 million in fiscal 2001, to $305.4 million in fiscal 2002). This decrease reflects a lower volume
of loans sold due to management’s strategy of keeping a larger portion of its production in portfolio instead of selling it on the
secondary market, consequently deferring the recognition of the amount of fees derived from the sale of loans.

Bank service revenues experienced a strong 10.4% increase (to $4.6 million in fiscal 2002, from $4.2 million in fiscal 2001), main-
ly due to a 25.9% increase in fees on deposit accounts, to $2.7 million in fiscal 2002, from $2.2 million in fiscal 2001, driven main-
ly by new depaosits gathered by the Bank, led by its new “Amiga” demand deposit account.

Securities, derivatives and trading activities showed a net increase of 163.0% for fiscal 2002 (from a net loss of $5.6 in fiscal 2001
to a net gain of $3.5 million in fiscai 2002), mainly driven by an increase in securities and trading net activities revenues during
fiscal 2002 (from $1.7 million loss in fiscal 2001, to $5.5 million gain in fiscal 2002).

Securities net activities showed a 471.2% increase to a gain of $4.4 million in fiscal 2002, from a net loss of $1.2 million in fiscal
2001, while trading net activities revenues also showed an improvement of 337.4% or a gain of $1.1 million in fiscal 2002, com-
pared to a loss of $484,000 for fiscal 2001.

Derivative activities resuited in unrealized losses of $2.0 million in fiscal 2002 while in fiscal 2001 the unrealized losses amount-
ed to $3.9 million, a decrease of 49.0%. .

Non-Interest Expenses

The Group’s proven expense discipline continues to drive its efficiency ratio to levels below its peer group and the banking indus-
try {in fiscal year 2003 this ratio improved to 51.35% from 57.22% in fiscal 2002) through the consistent generation of revenue at
a faster rate than expenses. The Group's success in controlling operating expenses comes from efficient staffmg, a constant
focus on process improvement and the outsourcing of certain functions.

For fiscal year 2003 non-interest expenses increased 9.6%, from $49.0 million in fiscal year 2002, to $53.7 million in fiscal year 2003,
reflecting the impact of the Group’s expansion strategy.

Employees’ compensation and benefits is the Group’s largest non-interest expense category. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,
compensation and benefits expenses increased 19.7% to $20.6 million versus $17.2 million in fiscal 2002, reflecting an expansion
of the Group’s work force {refer to Table 3 for more selected data regarding employees’ compensation and benefits} and main-
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Biabi BN onSinte e SUEXpensesiSumnTar

Three-Year Period Ended June 30, 2003
{Dollars in thousands)

Fixed compensation $15,658 $11,531 35.8% $10,757
Variable compensation 4,905 4,847 1.2% 3,416
Compensation and benefits (1} 20,563 16,378 25.6% 14,173
Stock option cancellation - 800 -100.0% 1,499
Total compensation and benefits 20,563 17,178 19.7% 15,672
Occupancy and equipment 9,079 7,800 16.4% 7,141
Advertising and business promotion 7,052 6,717 5.0% 4,298
Professional and service fees 6,467 7125 -9.2% 2,891
Communications 1,671 1,507 10.9% 1,633
Municipal and other general taxes 1,556 1,722 -9.6% 1,951
Insurance, including deposits insurance 736 569 29.3% 474
Printing, postage, stationery and supplies 1,038 N 31.2% 683
Other operating expenses 5,494 5,553 -1.1% 4,485
Other non-interest expenses 33,093 31,784 41% 23,656
Total non-interest expenses $53,656 $48,962 9.6% $39,228
Relevant ratios and data (1):
Non-interest income to Non-interest expenses ratio 72.65% 63.83% 51.96%
Efficiency ratio 51.35% 51.22% 67.83%
Expense ratio 0.99% 1.04% 1.00%
Compensation and benefits to non-interest expenses (1) 38.3% 33.5% 36.1%
Variable compensation to total compensation (1) 23.9% 29.6% 24.1%
Compensation to total assets (1} 0.68% 0.66% 0.70%
Average compensation per employee (1) $40.6 $39.3 $40.2
Average number of employees 506 M7 353
Bank assets per employee $6,007 $5,958 $4,750
Work force:
Banking operations 423 359 314
Trust operations 57 24 27
Brokerage and Insurance operations 33 42 48
Total work force 513 425 389

(1) Excludes non-cash stock options cancellation charges.

taining variable compensation (commissions) at prior fiscal years’ levels despite a higher volume of business. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2002, the Group recognized a non-cash expense of $800,000, with a corresponding offsetting charge against
additional paid-in capital, related to the cancellation by the Board of Directors of approximately 271,500 of non-vested stock
options granted to its directors, officers and employees during calendar years 1999 and 1998.

Occupancy and equipment expenses increased 16.4%, from $7.8 million in fiscal 2002 to $9.1 million in fiscal 2003, as a direct
result of the addition of a new branch and the relocation of a second branch to improve our retail banking platform in response
to bank products demand.

During fiscal year 2003 the Group continued its aggressive promotional campaign to enhance the market recognition of new and
existing products in order to increase our fee-based revenues. As a result, in such fiscal year, advertising and business promo-
tions increased 5.0% to $7.1 million versus $6.7 million in fiscal year 2002,

The rise in communications, insurance, printing, postage, stationery and supply expenses are mainly due to the general growth
in the Group’s business activities, products and services offered.
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The Group started a new positioning strategy during late fiscal 2001, which included the opening of two new financial
centers, the remodeling of existing financial centers and office facilities, more aggressive advertising campaigns,
investments in technology, professional fees for consulting engagements related to new services, the outsourcing of
certain functions to provide new and better services to our customers and increased variable compensation expens-
es resulting from increased insurance and mortgage services. As a result, non-interest expenses increased, reflecting
the impact of the Group’s expansion strategy, see Table 3. In addition, professional expenses doubled normal trends
due to additional charges relating to an evaluation of the Group’s operations by external consultants. For the year
ended June 30, 2002, the increase in non-interest expenses was 24.8% to $49.0 million, compared to $39.2 million for fis-
cal 2001.

Employees’ compensation and benefits for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 increased 9.6% to $17.2 million versus
$15.7 million for the same period of fiscal 2001, reflecting an expansion of the work force (refer to Table 3 for more
selected data regarding employee compensation and benefits), and an increase in variable compensation (commis-
sions) due to higher volume of business and related incentives.

Professional and service fees increased 146.5%, from $2.9 million in fiscal 2001 to $7.1 million in fiscal 2002, as a direct
result of the evaluation of the Group's operations by external consultants, as previously mentioned.

Advertising and business promotions reflect the Group's emphasis on the development of an aggressive promotional
campaign to enhance the market recognition of new and existing products in order to increase its fee-based revenues.
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, advertising and business promations increased 56.3% to $6.7 million versus $4.3
million for 2001.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses increased to $4.2 million in fiscal 2003 from $2.1 million in fiscal 2002. This increase in the
provision for loan losses was mainly due to the growth of the total loan portfolio, the increase in non-performing loans
and to the increase experienced in net credit fosses to $2.2 million in fiscal 2003, from $1.9 million in fiscal 2002 (but
lower than the $6.9 million in fiscal 2001 and the $10.3 million in fiscal 2000). The increase in credit losses is mainly due
to $1.4 million of net credit losses in the consumer loan portfolio, a 30.5% increase, when compared to $1.1 million net
credit losses in fiscal 2002. Non-performing loans increased 43.6%, from $20.1 million as of June 30, 2002, to $28.9 mil-
lion as of June 30, 2003. Most of the increase in non-performing loans came from the real estate loan portfolio, which
is composed mostly of residential mortgage loans. See Table 12 for the composition of non-performing loans.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the Group re-defined its lending strategy towards lower credit risk loans col-
lateralized by real estate, while de-emphasizing unsecured personal loans and financing leases. Such strategy
responded to the level of credit losses being experienced on personal loans and financing leases that significantly
reduced the net margin (after credit losses) generated by such portfolio. Such strategy was further complemented with
the sale of approximately $169.0 million of unsecured personal loans and financing leases on July 7, 2000, maintaining
only a marginal amount of such loans and leases in its portfolio. After the sale, the Group discontinued its leasing oper-
ation.

The positive effect of the above mentioned strategy was reflected in a substantial reduction in consumer loans and
financing leases net credit losses in fiscal 2002. Consumer net credit losses declined to $1.1 miltion in fiscal 2002 from
$1.5 million in fiscal 2001 and $6.2 million in fiscal 2000. Additicnally, financing leases net credit losses declined to
$123,000 in fiscal 2002 from $4.7 million in fiscal 2001 and $3.7 million in fiscal 2000. Financing leases net credit losses
after fiscal 2000, relate to a small portion of leases in severe delinquency that were retained by the Group after the sale
of such portfolio. As previously mentioned, thereafter the Group discontinued originating financing leases and let the
remaining portfolio run-off. The charge-off of such leases took place when all collection efforts were exhausted and
the underlying collateral became worthless.

Please refer to the allowance for loan losses and non-performing assets section on Table 8 through Table 12 for a more
detailed analysis of the allowances for loan losses, net credit losses and credit quality statistics. Also refer to section
“Allowance for Loan Losses and Non-performing Assets”.

Provision (Credit) for Income Taxes

For fiscal 2003, the Group recorded a $4.3 million income tax provision versus $720,000 in fiscal 2002. The current
income tax provision is lower than the provision based on the statutory tax rate applicable to the Group, which is 39%,
due to interest income earned on certain investments exempt for Puerto Rico income tax purposes, net of the disal-
lowance of related expenses attributable to the exempt income. Exempt interest relates mostly to interest earned on
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obligations of the United States and Puerto Rico governments and certain mortgage-backed securities, including securities held
by the Group’s International Banking Entity. The main reason for the increase of fiscal year 2003 tax expense is the increase in
income before income taxes of 42.0% when compared to fiscal 2002 results. In addition, in July 2003, the Group and the Puerto
Rico Treasury Department settled an investigation of the Bank's income tax returns for the years ended June 30, 1997, 1998 and
1999 for $1.8 million.

For fiscal 2002, the Group recorded a $720,000 income tax provision, versus $1.3 million income tax benefit (credit) for 2001. The
tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2001 mainly resulted from non-operating activities, primarily losses on securities, trading and
derivatives activities. Furthermore, the difference between the tax credit and the maximum statutory tax rate applicable to the
Group, which is 39 percent, was also attributable to tax-advantaged interest income earned on certain investments and loans,
net of the disallowance of related expenses attributable to the exempt income.

Financial Condition

Group's Bank Assets
At June 30, 2003, the Group’s total assets amounted to $3.039 billion, an increase of 22.3% when compared to $2.484 hillion at
June 30, 2002. At the same date, interest-earning assets reached $2.963 billion, up 23.1% versus $2.406 billion at June 30, 2002.

As detailed in Table 4, investments comprise the Group’s largest component of interest-earning assets. It mainly consists of
money market investments, mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury notes, U.S. Government agencies bonds, and PR.
Government municipal bonds. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding the Group’s
portfolio of investments.

As in prior fiscal years, a strong growth in mortgage-backed securities drove the investment portfolio’s expansion, which
increased 25.1% to $2.093 billion (93.8% of the total investment portfolio) from $1.673 billion (95.2% of the total investment portfo-
lio) the year before, as the Group continued its asset liability management strategies of re-balancing its asset mix through sound
and lesser-risk asset acquisitions.

| Talle 4 - Bonk Assets e Verfenee % 2000
As of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Investments:
Mortgage-backed securities $2,092,939  $1,673,131 251%  $1,339,218
U.S. Government and agency obligations 53,813 3481 1445.9% 36,657
P.R. Government and agency obligations 50,208 52,706 -4.7% 8,481
Other investment securities 11,681 9,765 19.6% 9,288
Short-term investments 1,152 1,032 11.6% 51,074
FHLB stock 22,537 17,320 30.1% 15,272
Total investments 2,232,330 1,751,435 27.0% 1,459,991
Loans:
Loans receivable 724,295 570,449 21.0% 441,865
Allowance for loan losses {5,031) (3,039) 65.5% (2,856)
Loans receivable, net 719,264 . 567,410 26.8% 439,009
Loans held for sale 9,198 9,360 -1.7% 23,570
Total loans receivable, net 728 462 576,770 26.3% 462,579
Securities and loans sold but not yet delivered 1,894 71,750 -97.4% 14,108
Total securities and loans 2,962,686 2,405,955 23.1% 1,936,678
Other assets 76,182 78,355 -2.0% 97,028
Total assets $3,039,468 $2,484,310 22.3% $2,033,706
Investments portfolio composition percentages:
Mortgage-backed securities ‘ 93.8% 95.2% 91.7%
U.S. and PR. Government securities 47% 3.2% 3.1%
FHLB stock, short-term investments and other debt securities 1.5% 1.6% 5.2%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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At June 30, 2003, investments by the Group which exceed 10% of the consolidated stockholders’ equity are as follows:

Name of Issuer Investment Category Carrying Value Fair Value

(Dollars in Thousands)
Residential Funding Mortgage Securities | Available-for-Sale $23,900 $24,184

The carrying amount of trading and available-for-sale investment securities at June 30, 2003, by contractual maturity {excluding
mortgage-backed securities) are shown below:

Carrying Weighted
Amount Average Yield

{Dollars in thousands)
US Government and agency obligations:

Due after one year through five years $53,813 3.49%
53,813 3.49%
Puerto Rico Gavernment and agency obligations:
Due after one year through five years 9,960 5.89%
Due after five years through ten years 1178 5.93%
Due after ten years 33,070 5.97%
50,208 5.95%
Other:
Due after ten years 10,801 8.25%
10,801 8.25%
Total 115,702 5.90%
Mortgage-backed securities and equity securities 2,093,819 5.02%
Total investment securities $2,208,641 - 5.46%

At June 30, 2003, the Group's loan portfolio, the second largest category of the Group's interest-earning assets, amounted to
$728.5 million, 26.3% higher than the $576.8 million at June 30, 2002. The Group'’s loan portfolio is mainly comprised of residential
loans, home equity loans, and commercial loans collateralized by real estate. As shown in Table 5, the real estate loan portfolio
amounted to $670.1 million or 91% of the loan portfolio as of June 30, 2003, compared to $516.2 million or 83% of the loan portfo-
lio at June 30, 2002, in line with the Group’s lending strategy of concentrating on collateralized loan originations, primarily, resi-
dential mortgage loans and personal equity loans with mortgage collateral, as mentioned before.

The second largest component of the Group’s loan portfolio is commercial loans, mast of which are collateralized by real estate.
At June 30, 2003, the commercial loan portfolio totaled $43.6 million (6.0% of the Group’s loan portfolio), a growth of 5.7% com-
pared to $41.2 million at June 30, 2002. The consumer loan portfolio totaled $19.8 million (3.0% of total loan portfolio at June 30,
2003).
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The following table summarizes the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s total loans, excluding mortgage loans held
for sale, divided to reflect cash flows as of June 30, 2003. Contractual maturities do not necessarily reflect the actual term of a

loan, inciuding prepayments.

{In thousands) Maturities
Balance One Year After one year to five years After five years
outstanding at Or Less Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
June 39, 2003 Interest Rates Interest Rates Interest Rates |Interest Rates
Real estate-mortgage,
mainly residential $660,874 $80,541 $279,398 35 - $300,935 $ -
Commercial, mainly real estate 43,553 14,440 26,000 3,113
Consumer 19,826 14,104 5,484 238
Financing leases 42 42
Total $724,295 $109,127 $284,882 $26,000 $301,173 3,13

At June 30, 2002, the Group’s total assets amounted to $2.484 billion (an increase of 22.2% when compared to $2.034 hillion at
June 30, 2002). At the same date, interest-earning assets reached $2.406 billion, up 24.2% versus $1.937 billion a year earlier. An
increase in mortgage-backed securities drove the investment portfolio expansion. Mortgage-backed securities increased 24.9%
to $1.673 billion (35.2% of the total investment portfolio) from $1.339 billion {91.7% of the total investment portfolio) the year before,
reflecting the Group strategy of re-balancing its asset mix through sound and lesser risk asset acquisitions.

At June 30, 2002, the Group’s loan portfolic amounted to $576.8 million, 24.5% higher than the $462.6 million . Late in the second
quarter of fiscal 2001, the Group’s foan originations changed toward collateralized loans, primarily mortgage loans and person-

al loans with mortgage collateral, while de-emphasizing unsecured personal loans.

Liabilities and Funding Sources

As shown in Table 6, at June 30, 2003, the Group's total liabilities reached $2.838 billion, 22.4% higher than the $2.318 billion report-
ed a year earlier. Interest-bearing liabilities, the Group's funding sources, amounted to $2.777 billion at the end of fiscal 2003 ver-
sus $2.280 hillion the year before, a 21.8% increase. The rise in deposits and repurchase agreements to fund the expansion of

the loan and investment portfolios drove this growth.
9080 |

[ lablelsAloansiReceivable e i

Five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Real estate-mortgage, mainly residential $670,072 $516,232 $416,062 $384,024 $331,663
Consumer 19,826 22,0717 22,17 89,815 122,212
Commercial, mainly real estate 43,553 41,205 25,829 24117 10,555
Financing leases (1} 42 295 827 106,154 110,297
Total loans receivable 733,493 579,809 465,435 604,110 574,727
Allowance for loan losses (5,031) (3,039} (2,856) (6,837) (9,002)
Loans receivable, net $728,462 $576,770 $462,579 $597,273 $565,725
Loans portfelio composition percentages:
Real estate-mortgage, mainly residential 91% 89% 89% 64% 58% -
Consumer 3% 4% 5% 15% 21%
Commercial, mainly real estate 6% 7% 6% 4% 2%
Financing leases (1) 0% 0% 0% 17% 19%
Total loans receivable 100% 100% 100% 100% 106%

(1) Discontinued in June 2000.
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llablel6RiliabilitiesiISummagyfand 2003 anr Vedease %
As of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{Dollars in thousands)
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing deposits $63,919 $67,142 -4.8% $46,743
Now accounts 68,389 43,738 56.4% 26,107
Savings accounts 92,206 79,269 16.3% 78,703
Time deposits and IRA accounts 817,895 777,083 5.3% 661,701
1,042,409 967,232 1.8% 813,254
Accrued interest 1,856 1,618 14.7% 2,284
1,044,265 968,850 1.8% 815538
Borrowings:
Repurchase agreements 1,400,598 996,869 40.5% 915,471
FHLB funds 130,000 208,200 -37.6% 105,000
Subordinated capital notes 35,000 35,000 0.0% -
Term notes 15,000 15,000 0.0% 60,000
1,580,598 1,255,069 25.9% 1,080,471
Securities purchased but not yet received 152,219 56,195 170.9% -
Total deposits, borrowings and securities purchased
but not yet delivered 2,777,082 2,280,114 21.8% 1,896,009
Other liabilities 60,706 37,767 60.7% 24,207
Total liabilities $2,837,788  $2,317,881 22.9%  $1,920,216
Deposits portfolio composition percentages:
Non-interest bearing deposits 6.1% 6.9% 5.7%
Now accounts 6.6% 4.5% 3.2%
Savings Deposits 8.8% 8.2% 9.7%
Time deposits and IRA accounts 78.5% 80.4% 81.4%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Borrowings portfolio composition percentages:
Repurchase agreements 88.6% 79.4% 84.7%
FHLB funds 8.2% 16.6% 9.7%
Subordinated capital notes 2.2% 2.8% 0.0%
Term notes 1.0% 1.2% 5.6%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Short term borrowings
Amount outstanding at year-end $1,400,598 $996,869 $915,471
Daily average outstanding balance $1,158,243 $998,069 $790,498
Maximum outstanding balance at any month-end $1,400,598  $1,148,846 $955,745
Weighted average interest rate:
For the year 2.92% 3.98% 6.08%
At year end 1.12% 1.84% 4.12%

Borrowings are the Group’'s largest interest-bearing liability component. They consist mainly of diversified funding sources
through the use of Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) advances and borrowings, repurchase agreements, term notes,
subordinated capital notes, and unused lines of credit. At June 30, 2003, they amounted to $1.581 billion, 25.9% higher than the
$1.255 billion at June 30, 2002. The increase, mainly in repurchase agreements, reflects the funding needed to maintain the
Group’s loans and investment portfolios growth as previously mentioned. Repurchase agreements as of June 30, 2003 amount-
ed to $1.401 billion, a 40.5% increase when compared to $996.9 million as of June 30, 2002.

The FHLB system functions as a source of credit for financial institutions that are members of a regional Federal Home Loan
Bank. As a member of the of the FHLB of New York, the Group can obtain advances from the FHLB, secured by the FHLB stock
owned by the Group, as well as by certain of the Group’s mortgage loans and investment securities. Table 6 presents the com-
position of the Group’s other borrowings at the end of the periods analyzed.
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At June 30, 2003, deposits, the second largest category of the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities and a cost-effective source of
funding, reached $1.044 billion, up 7.8% versus the $368.9 million at June 30, 2002. As in prior fiscal years, most of the growth was
in the time deposits and IRA accounts, with an increase of $40.8 million or 5.3%, to $817.9 million as of June 30, 2003, compared
to $777.1 million as of June 30, 2002. In addition, an increase of $34.4 million or 18.1%, in core low cast demand and savings
deposits contributed tc this growth as results of previous years advertising campaign to promote these products started to mate-
rialize. Table 6 presents the composition of the Group's deposits at the end of the periods analyzed.

At June 30, 2003, the scheduled maturities of time deposits and IRA accounts of $100,000 or more were as follows:

{In thousands)

3 months or less $192,629
Over 3 months through 6 months 64,093
Over 6 months through 12 months 38,044
Over 12 months 18,699

Total $373,465

At June 30, 2002, the Group’s total liabilities reached $2.318 billion, 20.7% higher than the $1.920 billion reported a year earlier.
Interest-bearing liabilities amounted to $2.280 billion at the end of fiscal 2002 versus $1.896 billion the year before, a 20.3%
increase. At June 30, 2002, borrowings amounted to $1.255 billion, 16.2% higher than the $1.080 billion at June 30, 2001, mainly in
repurchase agreements, FHLB funds and the assumption of a subordinated capital note {see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

Inthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, deposits reached $968.9 million, up 18.8% versus the $815.5 million in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001. Most of the growth was in the time deposits and IRA accounts, with an increase of $115.4 million or 17.4%, to $777.1
million as of June 30, 2002, compared to $661.7 million at June 30, 2001. In addition, an increase of $38.6 million or 25.5%, in core
low cost demand and savings deposits contributed to this growth led by the new “Amiga” demand deposit account, which grew
by $20.9 million when compared to fiscal 2001.

Stockholders’ Equity

At June 30, 2003, the Group’s total stackholders’ equity was $201.7 million; an increase of 21.2% from the $166.4 million recorded
at June 30, 2002, which in turn reflects an increase of 46.6% from the $113.5 million recorded as of June 30, 2001. in addition to
earnings from operations (see “Overview of Financial Performance”}, this growth reflects an increase in the unrealized gain of
investment securities available-for-sale in part offset for the impact of an increase in the unrealized loss of cash flow hedge
derivative instruments. For mare of the Group’s stockholders’ equity activity, refer to Table 7 and to the Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and of Comprehensive Income included as part of the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Note 2 to such financial statements.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Group repurchased 97,000 common shares (155,492 common shares for the fis-
cal year ended on June 30, 2002) bringing the total to 2,025,363 shares as of June 30, 2003, with a cost of $35.9 million (1,534,191
shares as of June 30, 2002, with a cast of $33.7 million) the number of treasury shares held by the Group. The Group’s common
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange {(NYSE) under the symbol “OFG". At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Group's market
value for its outstanding common stock was $453.7 million ($25.69 per share) and $349.1 million ($20.29 per share), respectively.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Group declared cash dividends on its common stock amounting to $39.4 million or
$0.54 per share. Furthermore, on October 28, 2002, the Group’s Board of Directors declared a twenty-five percent stock split
effected in the form of a dividend on outstanding common shares on January 15, 2003, in addition to the regular quarterly cash
dividend. Therefore, the stock split had the effect of increasing the cash dividend by 25 percent. The dividend yield at June 30,
2003 was 2.10%. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the Group declared cash dividends, on its common stock amounting to
$7.8 million or $0.46 per share. On January 29, 2002, the Group's Board of Directors declared a 10% stock dividend on outstand-
ing camman shares an April 1, 2002, {payable on April 15, 2002), in addition to the regular quarterly cash dividend. The stock div-
idend had the effect of increasing the total cash dividend by 10 percent. The dividend vield at June 30, 2002 was 2.27%.

The Bank is considered “well-capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action if they meet or exceed
a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of 6%, a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% and a leverage capital ratio of 5%. In addition, the
Group and the Bank should meet the following minimum capital requirements: a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of 4%, a total risk-
based capital ratio of 8% and a leverage capital ratio of 4%. As shown in Table 7 and in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Group and the Bank comfortably exceed these benchmarks due to the high level of capital and the quality and
conservative nature of its assets.
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As of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Capital data:
Stockholders’ equity $201,680 $166,429 21.2% $113,490
Leverage Capital (minimum required - 4.00%) 8.19% 7.80% 5.0% 6.68%
Total Risk-Based Capita! (minimum required - 8.00%) 25.00% 22.10% 13.1% 19.96%
Tier 1 Risk-Based capital {minimum required - 4.00%) 24.48% 21.76% 12.5% 19.53%
Stock data:
Outstanding common shares, net of treasury (1) 17,659 17,208 2.6% 17,196
Book value (1} $9.52 §7.72 23.3% $4.65
Market Price at end of year (1) $25.69 $20.29 26.6% $13.82
Market capitalization $453,660 $349,116 29.9% $237,580
Common dividend data:
Cash dividends declared $9,415 $7.840 20.1% $7,533
Cash dividends declared per share (1) $0.54 $0.46 17.9% $0.44
Payout ratio 19.24% 21.74% -11.5% 123.86%
Dividend yield as of June 30 2.10% 2.27% -1.4% 3.18%

(1) Data adjusted to give retroactive effect to the stock split and stock dividends declared on the Group’s common stock.

The following provides the high and low prices and cash dividend per share of the Group’s stock for each quarter of the last three fiscal years.
Common stock prices and dividend were adjusted to give retroactive effect to the stock split and stock dividends declared on the Group’s
common stock.

Price Cash
Dividend
High Low Per share
_Fiscal 2003:
June 30, 2003 $26.34 $21.66 $0.1400
March 31, 2003 $21.73 $20.06 $0.1400
December 31, 2002 $20.61 $15.88 $0.1400
September 30, 2002 $20.19 $16.60 $0.1200
Fiscal 2002
June 30, 2002 $20.29 $16.04 $0.1200
March 31, 2002 $17.40 $13.33 $0.1200
December 31, 2001 $15.13 $13.02 $0.1091
September 30, 2001 $15.89 $12.22 $0.1091
Fiscal 2001:
June 30, 2001 $13.82 $9.38 $0.1091
March 31, 2001 $10.77 $9.27 $0.1091
December 31, 2000 $10.96 $8.00 $0.1091

September 30, 2000 - $11.27 $8.55 $0.1091
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Group's Financial Assets

The Group’s total financial assets include the Group's assets and the assets managed by the Group’s trust division, the retire-
ment plans administrater subsidiary and broker-dealer subsidiary. At June 30, 2003, they reached $5.7 billion — up 13.8% from $5.0
billion at June 30, 2002. One of the Group's financial assets components is the assets owned by the Group, of which about 39%
are owned by the Group’s banking subsidiary. In fiscal year 2002 the Group's total financial assets reached $5.0 billion, up 11.3%
from $4.5 billion at June 30, 2001.

Another financial asset component are the assets managed by the Group’s trust division and the retirement plans administrator
subsidiary. The Group’s trust division offers various types of IRA products and manages 401(K) and Keogh retirement plans, cus-
todian and corparate trust accounts. As of June 30, 2003, total assets managed by the Group’s trust division amounted to $1.670
billion, 20.8% higher than the $1.382 billion at June 30, 2002, primarily due to the acquisition of Caribbean Pension Consultants,
Inc., a retirement plans administrator located in Boca Raton, Florida, which added approximately $325.0 million in trust assets
managed. As of June 30, 2002, total assets managed by the Group’s trust division amounted to $1.382 billion, 4.3% lower than the
$1.445 billion at June 30, 2001, primarily due to a decline in market value in line with the decline in broader market indexes.

Finally, but not less important, the other financial asset component are the assets gathered by the Group’s broker-dealer sub-
sidiary. The Group's broker-dealer subsidiary offers a wide array of investment alternatives ta its client base, such as fixed and
variable annuities, tax-advantaged fixed income securities, mutual funds, stocks and bonds. At June 30, 2003, total assets gath-
ered by the broker-dealer from its customer investment accounts decreased 13.9%, this is, from $1.118 billion as of June 30, 2002,
to $962.9 million as of June 30, 2003. This decrease is mainly attributable to the overall market downturn experienced during the
last year. At June 30, 2002, total assets gathered by the broker-dealer from its customer investment accounts reached $1.118 bil-
lion, up 11.6% from $1.002 billion at the end of fiscal year 2001.

Allowance for lvan losses and Non-Performing Assets:

The Group maintains an allowance for foan losses at a level that management considers adequate to provide for potential loss-
es based upon an evaluation of known and inherent risks. The Group's allowance for loan losses palicy provides for a detailed
quarterly analysis of possible losses. Refer to details of the methodology in this section. Tables 8 through 12 set forth an analy-
sis of activity in the allowance for loan losses and presents selected loan loss statistics. In addition, refer to Table 5 for the com-
position (“mix”) of the loan portfolio.

At June 30, 2003, the Group's allowance for loan losses amounted to $5.0 million or 0.69% of total loans versus $3.0 million or
0.52% of total loans at June 30, 2002, $2.9 million or 0.61% of total loans at June 30, 2001, and $6.8 million or 1.13% of total loans
at June 30, 2000. The provision for loan losses increased ta $4.2 million in fiscal 2003 from $2.1 million in fiscal 2002 and fram $2.9
million in fiscal 2001, but declined in comparison with $8.2 million in fiscal 2000. The allowance increases in fiscal years 2003 and
2002 are directly related to the overall loan portfolio growth and the higher level of non-performing loans, mainly to non-per-
forming secured mortgage loans. Total loans receivable increased 26.5% from $579.8 million at the end of fiscal 2002 to $733.5
million at the end of fiscal year 2003. At the end of fiscal year 2001, total loans receivable amounted to $465.4 million. Non-per-
forming loans increased 43.6%, from $20.1 miilion at the end of fiscal 2002, to $28.9 million at the end of fiscal 2003. At the end of
fiscal year 2001, non-performing loans amounted to $16.9 million.

The allowance declines in 2001 and 2000 were in response to the lower level of net credit losses that decreased to $1.9 million
in fiscal 2002, from $6.9 million in fiscal 2001, $10.3 million in fiscal 2000 and $11.1 million in fiscal 1999. The reduction in credit
losses reflects the Group’s strategy implemented in fiscal 2000 to re-balance the composition of the Group’s ioan portfolio,
toward lower credit risk loans, mostly secured by real estate.

As previously discussed, during the second quarter of fiscal 2000, the Group re-defined it lending strategy toward lower credit
risk loans collateralized by real estate, while de-emphasizing unsecured personal toans and financing leases. Such strategy
responded to the leve! of credit losses being experienced on financing leases that significantly reduced the net margin {after
credit losses) generated by such portfolio. Such strategy was further complemented with the sale of approximately $169 million
of unsecured personal loans and financing leases on July 7, 2000, maintaining only a marginal amount of such loans and leases
in its portfolio. After the sale, the Group discontinued its leasing operation.

Also as a result of the strategy mentioned above, the loan portfolio mix and the allowance for loan losses shifted toward the
lower credit risk portfolio of real estate loans (mostly residential loans); thus; improving its quality. In fiscal year 2003 real estate
loans grew 29.8% from $516.2 million at the end of fiscal 2002 to $670.1 million at the end of fiscal 2003, while in fiscal year 2002
real estate loans grew 19.4% fram $416.1 million at the end of fiscal 2001 to $516.2 million at the end of fiscal 2002. The portion
of the allowance for loan losses related to such loans increased from $816,000 at June 30, 2001 to $1.2 million at June 30, 2002,
and to $1.9 million at June 30, 2003. As a result of such growth, as shown in Tabies 5 and 9, the percentage of real estate loans
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to total loans increased from 89% at the end of fiscal years 2001 and 2002, to 91% at the end of fiscal 2003, while the portion of
the allowance for loans losses related to such loans increased from 28.6% at the end of fiscal 2001, to 39.0% at the end of fiscal
2002 and to 37.3% at the end of fiscal 2003.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review
of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions.
This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.

The Group follows a systematic methodology to establish and evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. This
methodology consists of several key elements.

Five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003
{Dollars in thousands)

Beginning balance $3,039 $2,856 $6,837 $9,002 $5,658
Provision for loan losses 4,190 2,117 2,903 8,150 14,473

Net credit losses — see Table 10 (2,198) {1,934) (6,884) (10,315) (11,129}

End balance $5,031 $3,039 $2,856 $6,837 $9,002

Five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Consumer $2,263 $1,494 $1,318 $1,354 $4,186
Commercial 878 285 419 376 461
Financing leases 15 74 303 4519 4,282
Non-real estate 3,156 1,853 2,040 6,249 8,929
Real estate - mortgage 1,875 1,186 816 588 13
$5,031 $3,039 $2,856 $6,837 $9.002
Allowance composition percentage:
Consumer 45.0% 49.2% 46.1% 19.8% 46.5%
Commercial 17.5% 9.4% 14.7% 5.5% 5.1%
Financing leases 0.2% 2.4% 10.6% 66.1% 47.6%
Non-real estate 62.7% 61.0% 1.4% 91.4% 99.2%
Real estate - mortgage 37.3% 39.0% 28.6% 8.6% 0.8%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Allowance coverage ratio at end of year

Applicable to:
Real estate - mortgage (1) 0.28% 0.23% 0.20% 0.15% 0.02%
Consumer 11.4% 6.8% 5.8% 1.5% 3.4%
Commercial 2.0% 0.7% 1.6% 1.6% 4.4%
Financing leases 35.7% 25.1% 36.6% 4.3% 3.9%
Total loans 0.69% 0.52% 0.61% 1.13% 1.57%
Other selected data and ratios:
Recoveries to charge-off's 29.0% 31.9% 238% . 23.1% 17.6%
Allowance coverage ratio to:
Non-performing loans 17.4% 15.1% 16.9% 40.5% 46.1%
Non-real estate non-performing loans 217.3% 256.2% 103.4% 82.1% 92.2%

(1) Includes loans held for sale.
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five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003
{Dollars in thousands)

Real estate

Charge-offs 8(5) $(30) 377 $(28) $(2)
Recoveries - - o~ - 16
(5) {30) 1) (28) 14
Consumer
Charge-offs (1,760) {1,531) (2,653) {7,803) (6,020)
Recoveries 334 438 1,182 1,606 932
(1,426} {1,093) (1.471) {6,197} {5,088)
Commercial
Charge-offs (24) - (222) (45) {11)
Recoveries 63 42 58 102 16
39 42 (164) 57 5
Overdraft, mainly consumer
Charge-offs (1,168) {858} (636) (608) {408)
Recoveries 272 128 170 131 314
(896) {730 (466) (477) _(94)
Leasing
Charge-offs (138) (420} (5,442) (4,938) (7,059)
Recoveries 228 297 736 1,268 1,093
90 (123) (4,706) {3,670} {5,966)
Net credit losses
Total charge-offs (3,095) (2,839) (9,030) (13,422) (13,500)
Total recoveries 897 905 2,146 3,107 2,371
$(2,198) $(1,934) $(6,884) $(10,315) $(11,129)
Net credit losses (recoveries) to average loans: - - ~ - -
Real estate 0.00% 0.01% 0.02% 0.01% 0.00%
Consumer 7.35% 5.07% 7.54% 4.95% 4.05%
Commercial -0.10% -0.13% 0.72% 0.27% -0.04%
Leasing -50.85% 22.20% 95.90% 3.86% 4.83%
Total 0.33% 0.35% 1.55% 1.79% 1.94%
Average loans (1)
Real estate $608,189 $495,631 $401,916 $335,353 $309,909
Consumer 19,404 21,549 19,517 125,199 125,482
Commercial 40,477 31,345 22,926 21,066 13,978
Leasing 177 554 4,907 95,012 123,518
Total $668,247 $549,079 $449,266 $576,630 $572,888

(1) Includes loans held for sale.
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Five-year Period Ended June 30, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-performing assets:
Non-performing loans

. Non-accruing loans $10,350 $10,196 $6,537 $8,844 $8,892
~_Accruing loans over 90 days past due 18,632 9,920 10,366 8,031 10,650
Total non-performing loans (see Table 12 below) 28,882 20,116 16,903 16,875 19,542
Foreclosed real estate 536 476 847 398 383
Repossessed autos - - 107 552 438
Repossessed equipment - - - 2 46
Total non-performing assets $29,418 $20,592 $17.857 $17,827 $20,409
Interest which could have recorded in the period if the
loans had not been classified as non-accruing loans $648 $7124 $664 $851 $810
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.97% 0.83% 0.88% 0.96% 1.29%
Non-performing loans ta: '
Total loans 3.94% 3.47% 3.63% 2.79% 3.40%
Total assets 0.95% 0.81% 0.83% 0.91% 1.28%
Total capital 14.32% 12.09% 14.39% 14.32% 16.80%

i

F/ve—yea enad Ended June 30, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-performing loans:

Consumer $484 $416 $588 $1,544 $942
Financing leases 19 147 640 5878 7,652
Commercial 1,798 585 1,535 901 1,166
Other 14 38 - - -
Non-real estate 2,315 1,186 2,763 8,323 9,760
Real estate, mainly residential 26,567 18,930 14,140 8,552 9,782
Total $28,882 $20,116 $16,903 $16,875 $19,542
Non-performing loans composition percentages:
Consumer 1.7% 2.1% 3.4% 9.2% 4.8%
Financing leases 0.1% 0.7% 3.8% 34.8% 39.2%
Commercial 6.2% 2.9% 9.1% 5.3% 6.0%
Other 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Non-real estate 8.0% 5.9% 16.3% 49.3% 50.0%
Real estate, mainly residential 92.0% 94.1% 83.7% 50.7% 50.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Larger commercial loans that exhibit potential or observed credit weaknesses are subject to individual review and grading.
Where appropriate, aliowances are allocated to individual loans based on management's estimate of the borrower’s ability to
repay the loan given the availability of collateral, other sources of cash flow and legal options available to the Group.

Included in the review of individual loans are those that are impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Group will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest
when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured based on the present value
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, or as a practical expedient, at the observable mar-
ket price of the loan or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. Loans are individually evaluated for
impairment, except large groups of small balance, homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and for
loans that are recorded at fair value or at the lower of cost or market. The Group measures for impairment all commercial loans
over $250,000. The portfolios of mortgages and consumer loans are considered homogeneous and are evaluated collectively for
impairment. For the five-year period ended June 30, 2003, the Group determined that no specific impairment allowance was
required for those loans evaluated for impairment.

For loans that are not individually graded, the Group uses a methodology that follows a loan credit risk rating process that
involves dividing loans into risk categories. The following are the credit risk categories (established by the FDIC Interagency
Policy Statement of 1993) used:

1. Pass - [oans considered highly collectible due to their repayment history or current status (to be in this category a loan can
not be more than 90 days past due).

2. Special Mention -loans with potential weaknesses that deserve management's close attention. If left uncarrected, these
potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects of the loan.

3. Substandard - loans inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral
pledged, if any. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies
are not corrected.

4. Doubtful - loans that have all the weaknesses inherent in substandard, with the added characteristic that collection or liqui-
dation in full is highly questionable and improbable.

5. Loss - loans considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted.

The Group, using an aged-based rating system, applies an overall allowance percentage to each loan portfolio category based
on historical credit osses adjusted for current conditions and trends. This delinquency-based calculation is the starting point
for management’s determination of the required level of the allowance for loan losses. Other data considered in this determina-
tion includes:;

1. Qverall historical loss trends; and
2. Other information, including underwriting standards, economic trends and unusual events.

Loan loss ratios and credit risk categaries, are updated quarterly and are applied in the context of accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and the Joint Interagency Guidance on the importance of depository
institutions having prudent, conservative, but not excessive (oan loss allowances that fall within an acceptable range of esti-
mated losses. While management uses available information in estimating possible loan losses, future changes to the allowance
may be necessary based on factors beyond the Group's control, such as factors affecting general economic conditions.

The Group’s non-performing assets include non-performing loans, foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets (see
Tables 11 and 12). At June 30 2003, the Group’s non-performing assets totaled $29.4 million {0.97% of total assets) versus $20.6
million (0.83% of total assets) at June 30, 2002. At June 30, 2001, non-performing assets amounted to $17.9 million (0.88% of total
assets). This increase was principally due to a higher level of non-perfarming loans, which are mostly secured by mortgages.

At June 30, 2003, the allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans coverage ratio was 17.4% (15.1% at June 30, 2002.
Excluding the lesser-risk real estate loans, the ratio is much higher, 217.3% (256.2% at June 30, 2002).
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Detailed information concerning each of the items that comprise non-performing assets follows:

*» Real estate loans - are placed in non-accrual status when they become 90 days or more past due, except far well-collateral-
ized residential real estate loans for which recognition of interest is discontinued when other factors indicate that collection of
interest or principal is doubtful, and are charged-off based on the specific evaluation of the collateral underlying the loan. At
June 30, 2003, the Group’s non-performing real estate loans totaled $26.6 million (92.0% of the Group’s non-performing loans,
compared to $18.9 million or 94.1% at June 30, 2002, and to $14.1 million or 83.7% at June 30, 2001). Nan-performing loans in
this category are primarily residential mortgage loans. Based on the value of the underlying collateral and the loan-to-value
ratios, management considers that no significant losses will be incurred on this portfolio.

* Commercial business loans - are placed in non-accrual status when they become 90 days or more past due and are charged-
off based on the specific evaluation of the underlying collateral. At June 30, 2003, the Group’s non-performing commercial busi-
ness loans amounted to $1.8 million (6.2% of the Group’s non-performing loans, compared to $585,000 or 2.9% at June 30, 2002,
and $1.5 million or 9.1% at June 30, 2001). Most of this portfolio is also collateralized by rea! estate and no significant losses
are expected.

¢ Consumer loans - are placed in non-accrual status when they become 90 days past due and charged-off when payments are
delinquent 120 days. At June 30, 2003, the Group's non-performing consumer loans amounted to $484,000 (1.7% of the Group's
total non-performing loans, compared to $416,000 or 2.1% at June 30, 2002, and $588,000 or 3.4% at June 30, 2001).

* Finance leases - are placed in non-accrual status when they become 90 days past due. At June 30, 2003, the Group’s non-per-
forming financing leases portfolio amounted to $19,000 (0.1% of the Group's total non-performing loans, compared to $147,000
or 0.7% at June 30, 2002, and $640,000 or 3.8% at June 30, 2001). The underlying collateral secures these financing leases. As
reported, the Group discontinued leasing operations on June 30, 2000.

» Foreclosed real estate - is initially recorded at the lower of the related loan balance or fair value at the date of foreclosure. Any
excess of the loan balance over the fair market value of the property is charged against the allowance for loan losses.
Subsequently, any excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair market value less selling cost is charged to operations.
Management is actively seeking prospective buyers for these foreclosed real estate properties. Foreclosed real estate balance
amounted to $536,000 at June 30, 2003, $476,000 at June 30, 2002 and $847,000 June 30, 2001.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

As disclosed in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group has certain obligations and commitments to make
future payments under contracts. At June 30, 2003, the aggregate contractual obligations and commercial commitments are:

Payments Due by Period (Dollars in thousands) Total Less than 2-5 years After5
1 year years
Contractual Obligations:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $1,400598  $1,400,598 5 - &8 -
Advances from FHLB 130,000 130,000 - -
Term notes 15,000 - 15,000 -
Subordinated capital notes 35,000 - - 35,000
Annual rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases 9,804 1,842 5527 2435
Total $1590,402  $1,532,440 $20,527 $37,435
Other Commercial Commitments:
Lines of credit $21,748 $21,748 $8 - § -
Commitments to extend credit 5,138 5,738 - -
Total $27,486 $27,486 $§ - $ -

Such commitments will be funded in the normal course of business from the Bank's principal sources of funds. At June 30, 2003,
the Bank had $501.0 million in time deposits and IRA accounts that mature during the following twelve months. The Bank does
not anticipate any difficulty in retaining such deposits.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in
terms of historical dollars without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.

Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than the effects of general levels of
inflation. Interest rates do not necessary move in the same direction or with the same magnitude as the prices of goods and
services since such prices are affected by inflation.

Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosuras About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk and Asset/Liability Management

The Group’s interest rate risk and asset/liability management is the responsibility of the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCQO”), which reports to the Board of Directors and is composed of members of the Group’s senior management.
The principal objective of ALCO is to enhance profitability while maintaining appropriate levels of interest rate and liquidity risks.
ALCO is also involved in formulating economic projections and strategies used by the Group in its planning and budgeting
process. It oversees the Group's sources, uses and pricing of funds.

Interest rate risk can be defined as the exposure of the Group's operating results or financial position to adverse movements in
market interest rates, which mainly occurs when assets and liabilities reprice at different times and at different rates. This dif-
ference is commonly referred to as a “maturity mismatch” or “gap”. The Group employs various techniques to assess the
degree of interest rate risk.

The Group is liability sensitive due to its fixed rate and medium to long-term asset compasition being funded with shorter-term
repricing liabilities. As a result, the Group utilizes various derivative instruments for hedging purposes, such as asset/liability
management. These transactions involve both credit and market risk. The notional amounts are amounts on which calculations
and payments are based. Notional amounts do not represent direct credit exposures. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net
difference between the calculated amounts to be received and paid, if any. The actual risk of loss is the cost of replacing, at mar-
ket, these contracts in the event of default by the counterparties. The Group controls the credit risk of its derivative financial
instrument agreements through credit approvals, limits, monitoring procedures and collateral, when considered necessary.

The Group generally uses interest rate swaps and interest rate options, such as caps and options, in managing its interest rate
risk exposure. The swaps were executed to convert short-term borrowings into fixed rate liabilities for longer periods and pro-
vide protection against increases in short-term interest rates. Under these swaps, the Group pays a fixed monthly or quarterly
cost and receives a floating monthly or quarterly payment based on LIBOR. Floating rate payments received from the swap coun-
terparties correspond to the floating rate payments made on the short-term borrowings thus resulting in a net fixed rate cost to
the Group (cash flow hedging instruments used to hedge a forecasted transaction). Under the caps, the Group pays an up front
premium or fee for the right to receive cash flow payments in excess of the predetermined cap rate; thus, effectively capping its
interest rate cost for the duration of the agreement.

The Group's swaps, excluding those used to manage exposure to the stock market, and caps outstanding and their terms at June
30, 2003 and 2002 are set forth in the table below:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Swaps:

Pay fixed swaps notional amount $650,000 $500,000
Weighted average pay rate - fixed 3.97% 4.74%
Weighted average receive rate - floating 1.24% 1.84%
Maturity in months 1t0 88 1t0 100
Floating rate as a percent of LIBOR 100% 100%
Caps:

Cap agreements notional amount $75,000 $200,000
Cap rate 4.50% 4.81%
Current 90 day LIBOR 1.31% 1.86%
Maturity in months 10 21t0 59




COriental Financial Group

The Group offers its customers certificates of deposit with an option tied to the performance of the Standard & Poor's 500 stock
market index. At the end of five years, the depositor will receive a specified percentage of the average increase of the month-
end value of the stock index. [f the index decreases, the depositor receives the principal without any interest. The Group uses
swap and option agreements with major money center banks and major broker-dealer companies to manage its exposure to
changes in those indexes. Under the terms of the option agreements, the Group will receive the average increase in the month-
end value of the corresponding index in exchange for a fixed premium. Under the term of the swap agreements, the Group will
receive the average increase in the month-end value of the corresponding index in exchange for a quarterly fixed interest cost.
The changes in fair value of the options purchased, the swap agreements and the options embedded in the certificates of deposit
are recorded in earnings.

Derivatives instruments are generally negotiated over-the-counter {“0TC") contracts. Negotiated OTC derivatives are generally
entered into between two counterparties that negotiate specific agreement terms, including the underlying instrument, amount,
exercise price and maturity.

Information pertaining to the notional amounts of the Group’s derivative financial instruments as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 is as
follows:

Notional Amount (In thousands) 2003 2002
Type of Contract:
Cash Flows Hedging Activities - Interest rate swaps used

to hedge a forecaste transaction - short-term borrowings $650,000 $500,000

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedge:
Interest rate swaps used to manage exposure to the

stock market on stock indexed deposits $7.450 $29,200
Purchased options used to manage exposure to the

stock market on stock indexed deposits 232,800 196,940
Embedded options on stock indexed deposits 229,574 222,560
Caps 75,000 200,000

$544,824 $648,700

At June 30, 2003, the contractual maturities of interest rate swaps and caps, and equity indexed options, by fiscal year were as
follows:

(In thousands) Equity Indexed Embedded
Cash Flows Options and Options on Stock

Year Ending June 30, Hedging Swaps Caps Swaps Purchased Indexed Deposits Total
2004 $200,000 $75,000 $40,750 $35,582 8351,332
2005 50,000 - 51,000 49,117 150,117
2006 250,000 - 54,150 53,678 357,828
2007 - - 58,490 56,908 115,398
2008 - - 35,860 34,289 70,149
2011 150,000 - - - 150,000

$650,000 $75,000 $240,250 $229,574 $1,194,824

During fiscal years 2003 and 2002, $4.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively, of losses were charged to earnings and reflected as
“Derivatives Activities” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Unrealized losses of $20.2 million and $12.5 million, respec-
tively, on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges were included in other comprehensive income during the same periods.
Ineffectiveness of $17,000 was credited to earnings during fiscal year 2003. No ineffectiveness was charged to earnings during
fiscal year 2002,

At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of derivatives was recognized as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition as follows: the fair value of the interest rate swaps used to manage the exposure to the stock
market on stock indexed deposits represented a liability of $315,804 and $1.8 million, respectively; the purchased options used to
manage the exposure to the stock market on stock indexed deposits represented an asset of $7.4 million and $10.3 million,
respectively, recorded in other assets; and the options sold to customers embedded in the certificates of deposit represented a

51



52

Oriental Financial Group

liability of $7.2 million and $10.5 million, respectively, recorded in deposits. The fair value of the interest rate swaps represented
a liability of $42.8 million and $22.6 million, respectively, presented in “Accrued expenses and other liabilities”. The caps did not
have carrying value as of June 30, 2003, and a fair value of $4.3 million as of June 30, 2002 was presented in other assets.

The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on July 1, 2000, resulted in a transition adjustment recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle of $270,000 unrealized loss ($164,000 net of tax effect) charged to earnings and reflected in the Consolidated
Statements of Income, and an $875,000 unrealized loss on derivatives ($534,000 net of tax effect) charged to other comprehen-
sive income and reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and of Comprehensive Income. The
transition adjustment in other comprehensive income also includes an unrealized loss of $26.6 million on securities transferred
from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale on July 1, 2000. As part of its interest rate risk management, during fiscal year 2000,
the Group closed certain interest rate swap and cap agreements with an aggregate notional value of approximately $390.0 mil-
lion. This transaction generated gains of approximately $1.7 million, which were amortized as an adjustment to the yield over the
remaining original terms of the agreements.

The Group is exposed to a reduction in the leve! of Net Interest Income (“N1I"} in a rising interest rate environment. N1l will fluc-
tuate with changes in the levels of interest rate affecting interest-sensitive assets and liabilities. Both hypothetical rate scenar-
ios consider a gradual change of 200 basis points during the twelve-month period. The decreasing rate scenario has a floor of
1%. This floor causes liabilities (already around 1%) to have little cost reduction, while the assets do have a decrease in yields,

" causing a small loss in declining rate simulations. These estimated changes are within the policy guidelines established by the

Board of Directors. If (1) the rates in effect at year end remain constant, or increase or decrease on an instantaneous and sus-
tained change of plus or minus 200 basis paints, and (2) all scheduled repricing, reinvestments and estimated prepayments, and
reissuances are constant, or increase or decrease accordingly; NIl will fluctuate as shown on the following table:

Change in Interest rate Expected NIi (1) Amount Change  Percent Change
June 30,2003:
Base Scenaric
Flat $98,424 $ - 0.00%
+ 200 Basis points $93,731 $ (4693 -4.77%
- 200 Basis points $93,284 $ (5,140) -5.22%
June 30,2002:
Base Scenaric
Flat $79,374 S - 0.00%
+ 200 Basis points $74.089 $ (5,285) -6.66%
- 200 Basis points $81,353 $ 1979 2.49%
Liguidity Risk Management

The objective of the Group’s asset/liability management function is to maintain consistent growth in net interest income within
the Group’s policy limits. This objective is accomplished through management of the Group’s balance sheet composition, liquid-
ity, and interest rate risk exposure arising from changing economic conditions, interest rates and customer preferences.

The goal of liquidity management is to provide adequate funds to meet changes in loan demand or unexpected deposit with-
drawals. This is accomplished by maintaining liquid assets in the form of investment securities, maintaining sufficient unused
borrowing capacity in the national money markets and delivering consistent growth in core deposits. As of June 30, 2003, the
Group had approximately $2.23 billion in investments available to cover liquidity needs. Additional asset-driven liquidity is pro-
vided by securitizable loan assets. These sources, in addition to the Group's 8.2% average equity capital base, provide a stable
funding base.

in addition to core deposit funding, the Group also accesses a variety of other short-term and long-term funding sources. Short-
term funding sources mainly include securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Borrowing funding source limits are deter-
mined annually by each counter-party and depend on the Bank’s financial condition and delivery of acceptable collateral secu-
rities. The Bank may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The Group
also uses the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) as a funding source, issuing notes payable, such as advances, through its FHLB
member subsidiary, the Bank. This funding source requires the Bank to maintain a minimum amount of qualifying collateral with
a fair value of at least 110% of the outstanding advances. At June 30, 2003, the Group has an additional borrowing capacity with
the FHLB of $213.2 million.




Oriental Financial Group

in addition, the Bank utilizes the National Certificate of Deposit ("CD”) Market as a source of cost effective deposit funding in
addition to local market deposit inflows. Depositors in this market consist of credit unions, banking institutions, CD brokers and
some private corporations or non-profit organizations. The Bank’s ability to acquire brokered deposits can be restricted if it
becomes in the future less than well capitalized. An adequately-capitalized bank, by regulation, may not accept deposits from
brokers unless it applies for and receives a waiver from the FDIC.

As of June 30, 2003, the Bank had lines of credit agreements with other financial institutions permitting the Bank to borrow a
maximum aggregate amount of $24.4 million {no borrowings were made during the year ended June 30, 2003 under such lines of
credit). The agreements provide for unsecured advances to be used by the Group on an overnight basis. Interest rate is nego-
tiated at the time of the transaction. The credit agreements are renewable annually.

The Group’s liquidity targets are reviewed monthly by the ALCO Committee and are based on the Group's commitment to make
loans and investments and its ability to generate funds.

The Bank's investment portfolio at June 30, 2003 had an average maturity of 24 months. However, no assurance can be given
that such levels will be maintained in future periods.

As previously discussed, the principal source of funds for the Group are dividends from the Bank. The ability of the Bank to pay
dividends is restricted by regulatory authorities (see “Dividend Restrictions” under “Regulation and Supervision”). Primarily,
through such dividends the Group meets its cash obligations and pays dividends to its common and preferred stockholders.
Management believes that the Group will continue to meet its cash obligations as they become due and pay dividends as they
are declared.

Critical Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with GAAP and with general practices within
the financial industry. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The Group believes that of its significant accounting policies, the following may involve
a higher degree of judgement and complexity.

* Allowance for Loan Losses - The Group assesses the overall risks in its loan portfolio and estabiishes and maintains a reserve
for probable losses thereon. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level sufficient to provide for estimated loan loss-
es based on the evaluation of known and inherent risks in the Group’s loan portfolic. The Group’s management evaluates the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. Based on current and expected economic conditions, the
expected level on net loan losses and the methodology established to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses,
management considers that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb probable losses on its loan portfolio. In deter-
mining the allowance, management considers the portfolio risk characteristics, prior loss experience, prevailing and project-
ed economic conditions and loan impairment measurements. Any significant changes in these considerations would have an
impact on the allowance for loan losses. See Financial Condition — Allowance for Loan Losses and Non-Performing Assets and
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for a detailed description of the
Group’s estimation process and methodology related to the allowance for loan losses.

* Financial Instruments - Certain financial instruments including derivatives, hedged items and investment securities available-
for-sale are recorded at fair value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in other comprehensive income or other gains
and losses as appropriate. Fair values are based on listed market prices, if available. If listed market prices are not available,
fair value is determined based on other relevant factors including price quotations for similar instruments. Fair value for cer-
tain derivative contracts are derived from pricing models that consider current market and contractual prices for the underly-
ing financial instruments as well as time valued and yield curve or volatility factors underlying the positions. See Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for a detailed description of the Group’s esti-
mation process and methodology related to the financial instruments.
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New Accounting Developments
Effective July 1, 2002, the Group adopted the following Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™}, which did not
have a material effect on the Group's financial condition or results of operations:

 SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill fram an amortization
method to an impairment-only approach. Thus, amortization of goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past business combi-
nations, ceased upon adoption of that statement.

» SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.

* SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of", and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB
Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”.

« SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. SFAS
No. 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishments of Debt — an amendment of APB Opinion No.
30", which required all gains and losses from extinguishments of debt to be aggregated and, if material, classified as extraor-
dinary item, net of related income tax effect. As a result, the criteria in Opinion No. 30 will now be used to classify those gains
and losses. SFAS No.145 also amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, which requires that certain lease modifications
that have economic effects similar to sale—leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner as sale-leaseback
transactions. Amendment to SFAS No. 13 became effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002.

Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Dispasal Activities

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"”) issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With
Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” This Statement requires that
a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. The provisions of this Statement were effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. Implementation of SFAS No. 146 did not have any effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 72

and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 8

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9”. Except for transactions between two or more mutual enterprises,
SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions from the scope of both SFAS No. 72 and Interpretation No. 9 and
requires that those transactions be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. In addition, SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets” to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship intangible assets of financial institutions such as
depositar-and-borrower-relationship intangible assets and credit cardholders intangible assets. SFAS No. 147 is effective for
acquisitions or impairment measurement of above intangibles effected on or after October 1, 2002. SFAS No. 147 did not have a
significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN No. 45”), Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57,

and 107 and rescission of FASB interpretation No. 34

In November 2002, the FASB [ssued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission
of FASB interpretation No. 34.” This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in the financial state-
ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantar is required to recognize,
atthe inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recog-
nition and initial measurement provisions of FIN No. 45 are applicable for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Adoption of the recognition, measurement and disclosure provisions of FIN No. 45 did not have a significant effect on the Group's
financial condition or results of operations.
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Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —Transition and Disclosure, an amendment

of FASB Statement No. 123

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123". This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of account-
ing for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No.
123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Group has decided to continue using
the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation.

Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN No. 46”), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,

an interpretation of ARB No. 51

In January 2003, the FASB Issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
ARB No. 51.” FIN No. 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities. A variable interest entity
is a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either (a) does not issue voting
interests {or other interests with similar rights) or (b) the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to
finance its activities. FIN No. 46 requires an enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity if that enterprise has a variable
interest that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s expected resid-
ual returns if they occur, or bath. Qualifying Special Purpose Entities are exempt from the consolidation requirements. The con-
solidation requirements of FIN No. 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The conso!-
idation requirements apply to variable interest entities created before February 1, 2003 in the first fiscal year or interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003.

The Group adopted FIN No. 46 on July 1, 2003. In its current form, FIN No. 46 may require the Group to deconsolidate its invest-
ment in the Statutory Trust | in future financial statements. The potential de-consolidation of subsidiary trust of financial holding
companies formed in connecting with the issuance of trust preferred securities appears to be an unintended consequence of
FIN No. 46. It is currently unknown if, or when, the FASB will address this issue. In July 2003, the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”) issued a supervisory letter instructing bank holding companies to continue to
include the trust preferred securities in their Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes until notice is given to the contrary.
The Federal Reserve intends to review the regulatory implications of any accounting treatment changes and, if necessary or
warranted, provide further appropriate guidance. There can be no assurance that the Federal Reserve will continue to allow
institutions to include trust preferred securities in Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes.

SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
This Statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB
Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. This Statement is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. Implementation of
SFAS No. 149 is not expected to have a significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of bath Liabilities
and Equity”. This Statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial condi-
tion certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies
an obligation of the issuer. This Statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Implementation of SFAS No. 150
is not expected to have a significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or resuits of operations.
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Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{Dollars in thousands)

Fiscal 2003

Interest income $37,714 $37,851 $39,121 $37,060 $151,746
Interest expense 19,548 19,414 19,420 18,894 71216
Net interest income 18,166 18,437 19,701 18,166 74,470
Provision for loan losses 840 1,100 850 1,400 4,190
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,326 17,337 18,851 16,766 70,280
Non-interest income 1,567 8,592 8,622 14,199 38,980
Non-interest expenses (12,836) (12,471) {13,770 (14,579} (53,656)
Income before taxes 12,057 13,458 13,703 16,386 55,604
Income tax expense (483) {943) (697) (2,161) (4,284)
Net income 11,574 12,515 13,006 14,225 51,320
Less: Dividends on preferred stock {597) (597) (597) (596) (2,387)
Net income available to common shareholders $10,977 $11,918 $12,409 $13,629 $48.933
Per share data (1)
Basic $0.64 $0.69 $0.71 $0.78 $2.81
Diluted $0.60 $0.65 $0.67 $0.73 $2.65
Average shares and shares eguivalents 18,337 18,430 18,505 18,631 18,487
Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets (RDA) 1.84% 1.87% 1.83% 1.99% 1.88%
Return on average equity (ROE) 31.10% 31.25% 30.45% 32.06% 31.33%
Efficiency ratio 52.47% 48.76% 51.54% 55.22% 51.35%
Expense ratio 1.14% 0.82% 1.03% 0.99% 0.99%
Interest rate spread 3.08% 2.97% 2.93% 2.65% 2.N%
Fiscal 2002
Interest income $32,945 $34,829 $36,789 $37,132 $141,695
Interest expense 21,940 20,586 19,824 20,345 82,695
Net interest income 11,005 14,243 16,965 16,787 59,000
Provision for loan losses 642 525 525 425 2117
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 10,363 13,718 16,440 16,362 56,883
Non-interest income 6,764 8,177 7,394 8915 31,250
Non-interest expenses 10,479 10,990 12,936 14,557 48,962
Income {loss) before taxes 6,648 10,905 10,898 10,720 39171
Income tax expense {39) (532) {471} 322 (720)
Net income 6,609 10,373 10,427 11,042 38,451
Less: Dividends on preferred stock (597) {597} {596) (597) (2,387}
Net income available to common shareholders $6,012 $9,776 $9,831 $10,445 $36.064
Per share data (1):
Basic $0.35 $0.57 $0.57 $0.60 $2.10
Diluted $0.34 $0.55 $0.55 $0.57 $2.00
Average shares and shares equivalents 17,925 17,881 17,893 18,652 18,003
Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets (ROA) 1.26% 1.85% 1.711% 1.77% 1.67% -
Return on average equity (ROE) 26.21% 38.77% 36.06% 35.08% 32.47%
Efficiency ratio 59.29% 52.44% 54.88% 57.44% 51.22%
Expense ratio 1.03% 0.85% 1.26% 1.16% 1.04%
Interest rate spread 2.31% 2.73% 3.08% 2.97% 2.59%

(1) Per share information were adjusted to give retroactive effect to the stock dividends declared on the Group’s common stock.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte
&Touche

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Oriental Financial Group Inc.
San Juan, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Oriental Financial Group Inc. and its sub-
sidiaries (the “Group”) as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockhold-
ers’ equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Group's management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The
financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2001, before the reclassifications described in Note 16 to the con-
solidated financial statements, were audited by other auditors whose report, dated August 17, 2001, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those statements and included an explanatory paragraph indicating that the Group changed its method of account-
ing for derivative instruments effective July 1, 2000, and that the effect was accounted for as the cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial position of Oriental
Financial Group Inc. and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also audited the adjustments described in Note 16 that were applied to reclassify certain amounts in the segment reporting
note to the 2001 consolidated financial statements to give retroactive effect to the Group's change in reportable segments. In our
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied.

Lletndfe * Faecalie 22/

San Juan, Puerto Rico
September 11, 2003

Stamp No. 1924256
affixed to original.
Deloitte

Touche
Tohmatsu
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June 30, 2003, and 2002

{In thousands, except shares information)

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $15,945 $9,280

Investments:
Money market investments 787 1,032
Time deposits with other banks ) 365 -

Short term investments 1,152 1,032

Trading securities, at fair value with amartized cost of $998 {June 30, 2002 - $9,186) 1,037 8,259

Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value with amortized cost of $2,162,480
{June 30, 2002 - $1,695,106):

Securities piedged that can be repledged 1,446,385 1,031,274
Other investment securities 761,219 698,550
Total investment securities available-for-sale 2,207,604 1,729,824
Federal Home Loan Bank {FHLB) stock, at cost 22,537 17,320
Total investments 2,232,330 1,757,435
Securities and loans sold but not yet delivered 1,894 ,750
Loans:
Loans held-for-sale, at lower of cost or market 9,198 9,360
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $5,031 (June 30, 2002 - $3,039) 719,264 567,410
Total loans, net 128,462 576,770
Accrued interest receivable 17,716 15,698
Foreclosed real estate, net 536 476
Premises and eguipment, net 16,162 17,988
Other assets, net 26,423 34,913
Total assets $3,039,468 $2,484,310
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Savings and demand $224 514 $190,148
Time and IRA accounts 817,895 777,083
1,042,409 967,232
Accrued interest 1,856 1,618
Total deposits 1,044,265 968,850
Borrowings:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,400,598 996,869
Advances from FHLB 130,000 208,200
Subordinated capital notes 35,000 35,000
Term notes 15,000 15,000
Total borrowings 1,580,598 1,255,069
Securities purchased but not yet received 152,219 56,195
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 60,706 37,767
Total liabilities 2,837,788 2,317,881
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; $25 liguidation value;
1,340,000 shares issued and outstanding 33,500 33,500
Common stock, $1 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized; 19,684,343 shares issued
{June 30, 2002 - 15,299,698 shares) . 19,684 15,300
Additional paid-in capital 57,236 52,670
Legal surplus 21,099 15,997
Retained earnings 106,358 75,806
Treasury stock, at cost, 2,025,363 shares (June 30, 2002 - 1,634,191 shares) {35,888) (33,674)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effect of $1,566
(June 30, 2002 - $1,977) (309) 6,830
Total stockholders’ equity 201,680 166,429
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $3,039,468 $2,484,310

58 See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ECon-oniatediStatementsiaflicomee:

» Years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2007
{In thousands, except per share informatfon)

Interest income:

Loans $51,486 $46,055 $38,762
Mortgage-backed securities 96,225 91,899 66,916
Investment securities 3,739 2,683 9,975
Short term investments 296 1,058 4 691
Total interest income 151,746 141,695 120,344
Interest expense:
Deposits 33,657 33,588 36,642
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 33,834 39,689 48,047
Other borrowed funds 7,918 8,306 6,592
Subordinated capital notes 1,867 1,112 -
Total interest expense 77,276 82,695 91,281
Net interest income 74,470 59,000 29,063
Provision for loan losses 4,190 2,117 2,903
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 70,280 56,883 26,160
Non-interest income (losses):
Trust, money management, brokerage and insurance fees:
Commissions and fees from fiduciary activities 6,891 6,014 6,532
Commissions, broker fees and other 4753 6,065 4,391
Insurance commissions and fees 2,828 1,769 1,090
Banking service revenues 5,968 4,611 4175
Net gain {loss) on sale and valuation;
Mortgage banking activities 8,026 8,748 8,794
Sale of securities available-for-sale 14,223 4,362 (1,175)
Derivatives activities {4,061) {1,997) {3919}
Trading securities 571 1,149 (484)
Premises and equipment (219) 425 -
Loans - 104 914
Leasing revenues - - 65
Total non-interest income, net 38,980 31,250 20,383
Non-interest expenses:
Compensation and employees’ benefits 20,563 17,178 15,672
Occupancy and equipment 9,079 7,800 7141
Advertising and business promotion 7,052 6,717 4,298
Professional and service fees 6,467 7125 3,765
Communications 1,671 1,507 1,633
Taxes other than on income 1,556 1,722 1,951
Insurance, including deposit insurance 736 569 474
Printing, postage, stationery and supplies 1,038 791 683
Other 5,494 5,553 3,611
Total non-interest expenses 53,656 48,962 39,228
Income hefore income taxes 55,604 39,171 7,315
Income tax {expense) benefit (4,284) {720) 1,318
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax 51,320 38,451 8,633
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - - {164)
Net income 51,320 38,451 8,469
Less: Dividends on preferred stock (2,387) (2,387) {2,387)
Net income available to common shareholders $48,933 $36,064 $6,082
Income per common share:
Basic before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.81 $2.10 $0.36
Basic after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.81 $2.10 $0.35
Diluted before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.65 $2.00 $0.36
Diluted after cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $2.65 $2.00 $0.35
Average common shares outstanding 17,396 17,139 17,245
Average potential common share-options 1,091 864 313
18,487 18,003 17,558
Cash dividends per share of common stock $0.54 $0.46 $0.44

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{In thousands)

CHANGES IN STOCKHCLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock:

Balance at beginning of year $33,500 $33,500 $33,500
Balance at end of year 33,500 33,500 33,500
Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year 15,300 13,885 13,805
Stock options exercised 520 166 80
Stock dividend and stock split effected in the form of a dividend 3,864 1,249 -
Balance at end of year 19,684 15,300 13,885
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of year 52,670 26,004 23,786
Stock options exercised 4,566 1.504 316
Stock options cancelled - 1,054 1,902
Stock dividend - 24,108 -
Balance at end of year 57,236 52,670 26,004
Legal surplus:
Balance at beginning of year 15,997 12,118 10,578
Transfer from retained earnings 5,102 3,879 1,540
Balance at end of year 21,099 15,997 12,118
Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of year 75,806 76,818 79,809
Net income 51,320 38,451 8,469
Cash dividends declared on common stock (9,415) (7,840) (7,533)
Stock dividend and stock split effected in the form of a dividend {3,864) (25,357) -—
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock (2,387) (2,387) {2,387)
Transfer to legal surplus {5,102) {3,879) (1,540)
Balance at end of year 106,358 75,806 76,818
Treasury stock:
Balance at beginning of year (33,674) {30,651) {27,116)
Stock purchased (2,214) {3,023) (3,535)
Balance at end of year (35,888) (33,674) (30,651)
Accumuiated other comprehensive income (ioss}, net of deferred tax:
Balance at beginning of year 6,830 (18,184) (16,493)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax {7,139) 25,014 {1,691)
Balance at end of year (309) 6,830 (18,184)
Total stockholders’ equity $201,680 $166,429 $113.490

Years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 {In thousands}
COMPREHENSIVE tNCOME:
Net income: $51,320 $38,451 $8,469
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized gain cn securities available-for-sale arising during the year 28,691 43,406 34,839
Realized (gains) losses on investment securities available-for-sale
included in net income (14,223) (4,362) 1175
Unrealized loss on derivatives designated as cash flows hedges
arising during the year (36,318) (28,075) {11,915)
Realized loss on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges included
in net income 16,141 15,551 2,394
Amount reclassified into earnings during the year related to
transition adjustment on derivative activities 227 751 358
Income tax effect related to unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale (1,657) (2,257) {1,475)
(7,139} 25,014 25476
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - - {27,167)
Other comprehensive income {loss) for the year (7,139) 25,014 {1,691)
Comprehensive income $44,181 $63,465 $6,778

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Comselidated off Cash Mows - G TR e R BN 007
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 {in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income _$ 51,320 $ 38451 $ 8469
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by {used in) operating activities:
Amartization of deferred loan origination fees and costs (2,008) (1,830 (673)
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on investment securities, net 7,086 1,870 370
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 4,692 4,371 4,564
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 76 (1,480) {99}
Cancellation of stock options - 1,054 1,802
Provision for:
Loan losses 4,190 2117 2,903
Foreclosed real estate ~ 125 -
Loss (gain) on:
Sale of securities available-for-sale (14,223) (4,362) 1,175
Mortgage banking activities (8,026} (8,748) (8,794}
Derivatives activities 4,061 1,997 3,919
Sale of premises and equipment 219 {425) -
Sale of loans ~ (104) (914)
Originations of loans held-for-sale (113,548) {183,052} (90,508)
Proceeds fram sale of loans held-for-sale 2,867 65,650 122,800
Net decrease (increase) in:
Trading securities 8,222 67,501 {12,317)
Accrued interest receivable (2,018) 948 (3,161)
QOther assets 4,989 (115) (1,495)
Net increase [decrease) in:
Accrued interest on deposits and borrowings (384) (1,498) (2,547}
Other Jiabilities 1625 2,890 8
Total adjustments (102,177} _(53181) 17,131
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities (50,857} (14,740} 25,600
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease (increase) in time deposits with other banks - 29,407 (42,124)
Purchases of:
Investment securities available-for-sale {1,912,359) (949,379) (1,104,101}
FHLB stock (6,493) (4,169) (4,126)
Net purchases/redemption of equity options (2,238) {7,690) (32,830
Maturities and redemptions of:
Investment securities available-for-sale 1,061,919 445,356 481,464
FHLB stock 1,276 212 ~
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale 681,234 272,012 532,442
Loan production:
Origination and purchase of loans, excluding loans held-for-sale (324,980) {269,774} (256,477}
Principal repayment of loans 168,343 144,762 60,850
Proceeds from sale of consumer loans and leases portfolio - - 167,900
Capital expenditures (2,866) (6,472) (3,794)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment - 679 ~
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate ( 53—) 607 ~
i 1592 - ~
Net cash used in investing activities (332,755) (342,540} (200,796)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in;
Demand, saving and time (including IRA accounts) deposits 78,391 174,499 76,831
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 403,729 81,398 98,978
Praceeds from:
Advances and borrowing from FHLB 949,700 158,200 100,000
Issuance of subordinated capital notes - 35,000 -
Exercise of stock options 5,086 1,670 396
Repayments of;
Advances and borrowing from FHLB (1,027,800 - (55,000) (65,000)
Term notes - {45,000) {26,500)
Stock purchased {2,214) (3,023) (3,535)
ivi id {11.395) {10,039} {9,920}
Net cash provided by financing activities 395,397 337,705 171,250
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 6,785 {18,575} (3,946}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10312 29,887 33,833
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 17,097 $ 10312 3 29,887
Cash and cash equivatents mclude;
Cash and due from banks $ 15945 $ 9,280 $ 8220
Short term investments < _ 1152 5_11 032 — 21,667
17007 112 23.881
§upp|ementa| Cash flow Disclosure and Schedule of Noncash Actvites: =
nterest paid B 76416 $_84.117 100,530
ncome taxes paid ) 88 = P 225
Real estate loans securitized into mortgage-backed securities 5 110,843 140,464 133,900
nvestment securities held-to-maturity transferred to available-for-sale B - = 766,848
Accrued dividend payable b 2472 2065 1.877
Other comprehensive income {loss) for the year (7.139) 25,014 $ (1,691)
Securities and loans sold but not vet delivered b 1,894 3 71750 $ 14108
Securities purchased but nat yet received § 152,219 $ 56,195 3 -
Transfer from loans to foreclosed real estate 571 3 362 449
Building sold through loan receivable - 4795 3 -
Stock dividend and stock split 5 3864 $ 25357 -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

As of June 30, 2003 and 2002
and for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2003

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of Oriental Financial Group Inc. (the “Group” or “Oriental”) conform to accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America {"GAAP") and to financial services industry practices. The following is
a description of the Group’s most significant accounting policies:

Nature of Operations

Oriental is a financial holding company incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. It has five subsidiaries,
Oriental Bank and Trust {the “Bank”), Oriental Financial Services Corp. {“Oriental Financiat Services”), Oriental Insurance, Inc.,
Caribbean Pension Consultants, Inc. and Oriental Financial {PR) Statutory Trust | {the “Statutory Trust”, see Note 8). Through
these subsidiaries, the Group provides a wide range of financial services such as mortgage, commercial and consumer lending,
financial planning, insurance sales, money management and investment brokerage services, as well as corporate and individ-
val trust services. Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements presents further information about the operations of the
Group’s business segments.

Main offices for the Group and its subsidiaries are located in San Juan, Puerto Rico. The Group is subject to examination, regu-
lation and periodic reporting under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, which is administered by the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

The Bank operates through twenty-three branches located throughout the island and is subject to the supervision, examination
and regulation of the Office of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions of Puerto Rico and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation {FDIC), which insures its deposits through the Savings Association Insurance Fund {SAIF), up to $100,000 per depos-
itor. The Bank has a wholly-owned subsidiary, Oriental Mortgage Corporation (“Oriental Martgage”), which is currently not in
operation, and it only asset is a cash account which balances as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 are not significant and it does not
have results of operations for the three year period ended June 30, 2003. Oriental Financial Services is subject to the supervi-
sion, examination and regulation of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and the Office of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions of Puerto Rico.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near
term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, and the valuation of derivative and trading activities.

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Group and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Group’s business activities are with customers located within Puerto Rico. Note 3 discuss the types of securities in
which the Group invests. Note 5 discusses the types of lending the Group engages. The Group does not have any significant con-
centrations to any one industry or customer.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Group considers as cash equivalents all money
market instruments that are not pledged with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition.
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Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per share excludes potential dilutive common shares and is calculated by dividing net income available to com-
mon sharehelders (net income reduced by dividends on preferred stock) by the weighted average of outstanding common
shares. Diluted earnings per share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the weighted average
of common shares is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the dilu-
tive potential common shares (options} had been issued, assuming that proceeds from exercise are used to repurchase shares
in the market (treasury stock method). Any stock splits and dividends are retroactively recognized in all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Securities Purchased / Sold Under Agreements to Resell / Repurchase

The Group purchases securities under agreements to resell the same or similar securities. Amounts advanced under these
agreements represent short-term loans and are reflected as assets in the statements of financial condition. It is the Group’s pol-
icy to take possession of securities purchased under resale agreements while the counterparty retains effective control over the
securities. The Group monitors the market value of the underlying securities as compared to the related receivable, including
accrued interest, and requests additional collateral when deemed appropriate. The Group also sells securities under agree-
ments to repurchase the same or similar securities. The Group retains effective control over the securities sold under these
agreements; accordingly, such agreements are treated as financing agreements, and the obligations to repurchase the securi-
ties sold are reflected as liabilities. The securities underlying the financing agreements remain included in the asset accounts.
The counterparty to repurchase agreements generally has the right to re-pledge the securities received as collateral.

The Group evaluates its securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity for impairment. An impairment charge in the consol-
idated statement of income is recognized when the decline in the fair value of investments below their cost basis is judged to be
other-than-temporary. The Group considers various factors in determining whether it should recognize an impairment charge,
including, but not limited to the length of time and extend to which the fair value has been less than its cost basis, and in market
value. For debt securities the Group also considers, among other factors, the investees repayment ability on its bond obligations
and its cash and capital generation ability.

Investment Securities

Securities are classified as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading. Securities for which the Group has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at amortized cost. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the
Group had no held-to-maturity securities. Securities that might be sold prior to maturity because of interest rate changes, to meet
liquidity needs, or to better match the repricing characteristics of funding sources are classified as available-for-sale. These
securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported net of tax in other
comprehensive income.

The Group classifies as trading those securities that are acquired and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near
future. These securities are carried at fair value with realized and unrealized changes in fair vaiue included in earnings in the
period in which the changes occur. Interest revenue arising from trading instruments is inciuded in the statement of income as
part of interest income.

The Group’s investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of New York stock has no readily determinable fair value and can
only be sold back to the FHLB at cost. Therefore, the carrying value represents its fair value.

Premiums and discounts are amortized to interest income over the life of the related securities using the interest method. Net
realized gains or losses on sales of investment securities and unrealized loss valuation adjustments considered other than tem-
porary, if any, on securitigs classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity are reported separately in the statement of
income. The cost of securities sold is determined on the specific identification method.

The Group evaluates its securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity for impairment. An impairment charge in the consoli-
dated statements of income is recognized when the decline in the fair value of investments below their cost basis is judged to
be other-than-temporary. The Group considers various factors in determining whether it should recognize an impairment charge,
including, but not limited to the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than its cost basis, and in market
value. For debt securities, the Group also considers, among other factors, the investees repayment ability on its bond obligations
and its cash and capital generation abhility.

63



64

MNotes to Financial Statements

Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments - As part of the Group’s asset/liability management, the Group uses interest-rate contracts,
which include interest-rate exchange agreements (swaps, caps, and options agreements), to hedge various exposures or to
modify interest rate characteristics of various statement of financial condition accounts.

Effective July 1, 2000, the Group adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities” (refer to Note 9). These statements establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. The statements require that all
derivative instruments be recognized as assets and liabilities at fair value. If certain conditions are met, the derivative may qual-
ify for hedge accounting treatment and be designated as one of the following types of hedges: {a) hedge of the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment (“fair value hedge”}; (b} a hedge
of the exposure to variability of cash flows of a recognized asset, liability or forecasted transaction (“cash flow hedge”) or (c) a
hedge of foreign currency exposure (“foreign currency hedge”).

In the case of a qualifying fair value hedge, changes in the value of the derivative instruments that have been highly effective
are recognized in current period earnings along with the change in value of the designated hedged item. In the case of a quali-
fying cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the derivative instruments that have been highly effective are recognized in other
comprehensive incame, until such time as those earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows of the underlying
hedged item. In either a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge, net earnings may be impacted to the extent the changes in the
value of the derivative instruments do not perfectly offset changes in the value of the hedged items. If the derivative is not des-
ignated as a hedging instrument, the changes in fair value of the derivative are recorded in earnings.

Certain contracts contain embedded derivatives. When the embedded derivative possesses economic characteristics that are
not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the host contract, it should be bifurcated, carried at fair value,
and designated as a trading or non-hedging derivative instrument.

Other Off-Balance Sheet Instruments - In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into off-balance sheet instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit and commitments under credit card arrangements. Such financial instruments are
recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received. The Group periodically eval-
uates the credit risks inherent in these commitments, and establishes loss allowances for such risks if and when these are
deemed necessary.

Mortgage Banking Activities and Loans Held-For-Sale

From time to time, the Group sells loans to other financial institutions or securitizes conforming mortgage loans into Government
National Mortgage Association (6NMA), Fannie Mae (FNMA) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) certifi-
cates using another institution as issuer. This other institution services the mortgages included in the resulting GNMA, FNMA
and FHLMC pools. These mortgages and other loans are reported as lpans held-for-sale and are stated at the lower of cost or
market in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. Realized
gains or losses on these loans are determined using the specific identification method.

Servicing rights on mortgage loans held by the Group are sold to another financial institution. The gain on the sale of these rights
is determined by allocating the total cost of mortgage loans to he sold to the mortgage servicing rights and the Joans (without
the mortgage servicing rights), based on their relative fair values. This gain is deferred and amortized over the expected life of
the loan, unless the loans are sold at which time the deferred gain is taken into income.

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Group grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers within Puerto Rico. A substantial portion of the loan
portfolio is represented by mortgage loans. The ability of the Group's debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real
estate and general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally is report-
ed at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees
or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees and costs and
premiums and discounts on loans purchased are deferred and amortized over the estimated life of the loans as an adjustment
of their yield through interest income using a method that approximates the interest method.

Interest recognition is discontinued when loans are 90 days or more in arrears on principal and interest, except for well-collat-
eralized real estate loans for which recognition is discontinued when other factors indicate that collection of interest or princi-
pal is doubtful. Loans for which the recognition of interest income has been discontinued are designated as non-accruing. Such
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loans are not reinstated to accrual status until interest is received on a current basis and other factors indicative of doubtful col-
lection cease to exist.

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses
charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan
balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review
of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the barrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions.
This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.

The Group follows a systematic methodology to establish and evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. This
methodology consists of several key elements.

Larger commercial loans that exhibit potential ar observed credit weaknesses are subject to individual review and grading.
Where appropriate, allowances are allocated to individual loans based on management’s estimate of the borrower’s ability to
repay the loan given the availability of collateral, other sources of cash flow and legal options available to the Group.

Included in the review of individual loans are those that are impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Group will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest
when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured based on the present value
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or as a practical expedient, at the observable mar-
ket price of the loan or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. Loans are individually evaluated for
impairment, except large groups of small balance, homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and for
loans that are recorded at fair value or at the lower of cost or market. The Group measures for impairment all commercial loans
over $250,000. The portfolios of mortgages, and consumer loans, are considered homogeneous and are evaluated collectively for
impairment.

For loans that are not individually graded, the Group uses a methodology that follows a loan credit risk rating process that
involves dividing loans into risk categories. The following are the credit risk categories {established by the FDIC Interagency
Policy Statement of 1993): pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss.

The Group, using an aged-based rating system, applies an overall allowance percentage to each loan portfolio category based
on historical credit losses adjusted for current conditions and trends. This delinquency-based calculation is the starting point
for management’s determination of the required level of the allowance for loan losses. Other data considered in this determina-
tion includes: the overall historical loss trends (one year and three years) and other information including underwriting stan-
dards, economic trends and unusual events such as hurricanes.

Loan loss ratios and credit risk categories, are updated quarterly and are applied in the context of GAAP and the Joint
Interagency Guidance on the importance of depository institutions having prudent, conservative, but not excessive loan loss
allowances that fall within an acceptable range of estimated losses. While management uses available information in estimat-
ing possible loan losses, future changes to the allowance may be necessary based on factors beyond the Group’s control, such
as factors affecting general economic conditions.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of each type of asset. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the
straight-line method over the terms of the leases or estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Long-lived assets and identifiable intangibles related to those assets to be held and used, except for financial instruments, and
mortgage and other servicing rights, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no impairment losses in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Foreclosed Real Estate

Foreclosed reaf estate is initially recorded at the lower of the related loan balance or its fair value at the date of foreclosure. At
the time properties are acquired in full or partial satisfaction of loans, any excess of the loan balance over the estimated fair mar-
ket value of the property is charged against the allowance for foan losses. The carrying value of these properties approximates
the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost to sell. Any excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair market value
is charged to operations.
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Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities

Transfer of financial assets is accounted for as a sale, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over trans-
ferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when {1) the assets have been isolated from the Group, (2) the transferee obtains the
right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and
(3) the Group does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before
maturity. As such, the Group recognizes the financial assets and servicing assets it controls and the liabilities it has incurred. At
the same time, it ceases to recognize financial assets when control has been surrendered and liabilities when they are extin-
guished.

Income Taxes

The Group follows an asset and liability approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Group’s financial statements or tax returns. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are determined for differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will
result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future. The computation is based on enacted laws and rates applicable to periods
in which temporary differences will be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. '

Stock Option Plans

At June 30, 2003, the Group has four stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 2. The
Group accounts for those plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees”, and related Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as
all options granted during the three year period ended June 30, 2003 under those plans had an exercise price equal to the mar-
ket value of the underlying comman stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect an net income and earn-
ings per share if the Group had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended June 30,
{In thousands except for per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net income, as reported $51,320 $38,451 $8,469
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards 1,417 2,368 2,317
Pro forma net income $49,903 $36,083 $6,152
Earning per share:
Basic - as reported $2.81 $2.10 $0.35
Basic - pro forma $2.73 $1.97 $0.22
Diluted - as reported $2.65 $2.00 $0.35
Diluted - pro forma $2.57 $1.87 $0.22

The fair value of each option granted in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $5.61, $4.72 and $2.22 per optian, respectively, as
adjusted for the stock split. The fair value of each option granted in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 was estimated at the date
of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options that have no restrictions and are fully transferable and negotiable in a free trading
market. Black-Scholes does not consider the employment, transfer or vesting restrictions that are inherent in the Group's
employee options. Use of an option valuation model, as required by GAAP, includes highly subjective assumptions based on long-
term predictions, including the expected stock price volatility and average life of each option grant. Because the Group's
employee options have characteristics significantly different from those of freely traded options, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the Group's estimate of the fair value of those options, in the Group’s opinion,
the existing valuation models, including Black-Scholes, are not reliable single measures the use of other option pricing models
may result in different fair values of the Group’s employee options.
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The following assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of the options granted, after giving retroactive effect to the 26%
stock split:;

(1) The expected option term is 7 years.

(2) The expected weighted average volatility was 32% for aptions granted in fiscal 2003 (2002 - 32%, 2001 - 31%).

(3) The expected weighted average dividend yield was 2.61% for options granted in fiscal 2003 (2002 - 3.11%, 2001 - 5.24%).
(4) The weighted average risk-free interest rate was 3.71% for options granted in fiscal 2003 (2002 - 5.09%, 2001 - 5.56%).

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other
events and circumstances, except for those resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. GAAP reguires
that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in netincome. Although certain changes in assets and liabili-
ties, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and on derivative activities that qualify and are desig-
nated for cash flows hedge accounting, are reported as a separate component of the stockholders’ equity section of the state-
ment of financial condition, such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Various Adopted Pronouncements
Effective July 1, 2002, the Group adopted the following Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”), which did not
have a material effect on the Group's financial condition or results of operations:

* SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 changes the accounting for goodwill from an amortization
method to an impairment-only approach. Thus, amortization of goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past business combi-
nations, ceased upon adoption of that statement.

* SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.

* SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. This statement supersedes SFAS No. 121,
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed 0Of”, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB
Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”.

*» SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Corrections”. SFAS
No. 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishments of Debt - an amendment of APB Opinion No.
30", which required all gains and losses from extinguishments of debt to be aggregated and, if material, classified as extraor-
dinary item, net of related income tax effect. As a result, the criteria in Opinion No. 30 will now be used to classify those gains
and losses. SFAS No.145 also amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, which requires that certain iease modifications
that have economic effects similar to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner as sale-leaseback
transactions. Amendment to SFAS No. 13 became effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002.

Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With
Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs assaciated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity {including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” This Statement requires that
a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. The provisions of this Statement were effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. Implementation of SFAS No. 146 did not have any effect on the Group's financial condition or results of operations.

Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 72 and 144

and FASB Interpretation No. 9

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 72 and 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9”. Except for transactions between two or more mutual enterprises,
SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions from the scope of both SFAS No. 72 and Interpretation No. § and
requires that those transactions be accounted far in accordance with SFAS Na. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. In addition, SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets” to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship intangible assets of financial institutions such as
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depositor-and-borrower-relationship intangible assets and credit cardholders intangible assets. SFAS No. 147 is effective for
acquisitions or impairment measurement of above intangibles effected on or after October 1, 2002. SFAS No. 147 did not have a
significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

interpretation No. 45 (“FIN No. 45"}, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and
107 and rescission of FASB interpretation No. 34

In November 2002, the FASB Issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’'s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission
of FASB interpretation No. 34." This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in the financial
statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to rec-
ognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The ini-
tial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN No. 45 are applicable for guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. Adoption of the recognition, measurement and disclosure provisions of FIN No. 45 did not have a significant
effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of

FASB Statement No. 123

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123". This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of account-
ing for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No.
123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Group has decided to continue using
the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation.

interpretation No. 46 (“FIN No. 46”), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,

an interpretation of ARB Nao. 51

In January 2003, the FASB Issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
ARB No. 51.” FIN No. 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities. A variable interest entity
is a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either {a) does not issue voting
interests (or other interests with similar rights) or (b) the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to
finance its activities. FIN No. 46 requires an enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity if that enterprise has a variable
interest that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s expected resid-
ual returns if they occur, or both. Qualifying Special Purpose Entities are exempt from the consolidation requirements. The con-
solidation requirements of FIN No. 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The consol-
idation requirements apply to variable interest entities created before February 1, 2003 in the first fiscal year or interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003.

The Group adopted FIN No. 46 on July 1, 2003. In its current form, FIN No. 46 may require the Group to deconsolidate its invest-
ment in the Statutory Trust | in future financial statements. The potential de-consolidation of subsidiary trust of financial holding
companies formed in connecting with the issuance of trust preferred securities appears to be an unintended consequence of
FIN No. 46. It is currently unknown if, or when, the FASB will address this issue. In July 2003, the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System {the “Federal Reserve”) issued a supervisory letter instructing bank holding campanies to continue to
include the trust preferred securities in their Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes until notice is given to the contrary.
The Federal Reserve intends to review the regulatory implications of any accounting treatment changes and, if necessary or
warranted, provide further appropriate guidance. There can be no assurance that the Federal Reserve will continue to allow
institutions to include trust preferred securities in Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes.

SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities

in April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
This Statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts {collectively referred to as derivatives} and for hedging activities under FASB
Statement No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. This Statement is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. Implementation of
SFAS No. 149 is not expected to have a significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.
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SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities
and Equity”. This Statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial condi-
tion certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies
an obligation of the issuer. This Statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and
atherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Implementation of SFAS No. 150
is not expected to have a significant effect on the Group’s financial condition or results of operations.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ financial statements to' conform with the current year presentation.

2. Stockholders’ Equity

Stock Dividend and Stock Split

On January 29, 2002, the Group declared a ten percent {10%) stock dividend an common stack held by shareholders of record as
of April 1, 2002. As a result, 1,249,125 shares of common stock were distributed on April 15, 2002. Also, on October 28, 2002, the
Group declared a twenty-five percent (25%) stock split effected in the form of a dividend on common stock held by registered
shareholders as of December 30, 2002. As a result, 3,864,800 shares of common stock were distributed on January 15, 2003. For
purpose of the computation of income per common share, cash dividend and stock price, the stock dividend and the stock split
were retroactively recognized for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Treasury Stock

On March 26, 2003, the Group’s Board of Directors announced the authorization of a new program for the repurchase of up to
$9.0 million of its outstanding shares of common stock. This program supersedes the ongoing repurchase program established
earlier. The authority granted by the Board of Directors does not require the Group to repurchase any shares. The Group will
make such repurchases from time to time in the open market at such times and prices as market conditions shall warrant, and
in compliance with the terms of applicable federal and Puerto Rico laws and regulations. The activity of common shares held in
treasury by the Group for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is set forth below.

{In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Dollar Dollar Dollar
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Beginning of year 1,534 $33,674 1,379 $30,651 1,108 $27,116
Common shares repurchased 97 2,214 155 3,023 n 3,535
Stock split 394 - - - - -
End of year 2,025 $35,888 1,534 $33,674 1,379 $30,651

Stock Option Plan

The Group has four stock options plans. These plans offer key officers and employees an opportunity to purchase shares of the
Group’s common stock. The Group follows the intrinsic value-based method of accounting for measuring compensation expense,
if any. Compensation expense is generally recognized for any excess of the quoted market price of the Group's stock at meas-
urement date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

The four stock options plans are: the 1988, 1996, 1998 and 2000 Incentive Stock Option Plans. The Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors has sole authority and absolute discretion as to the number of stock options to be granted, their vesting
rights, and the options exercise price. The plans provide for a proportionate adjustment in the exercise price and the number of
shares that can be purchased in case of a stock split, reclassification of stock, and a merger or reorganization. Stock options
vest upon completion of specified years of service.

In September and June 2001, the Group canceled 271,500 and 367,834, respectively, of non-vested options granted with a dis-
count in fiscal years 1998, 1999 and 2000. No consideration was paid to the option holders at the time of cancellation. Also, no
awards were granted to option holders within the following periods:

* the period prior to the date of cancellation that is the shorter of six months or the period from the date of the grant
of the canceled or settled option; and
« the period ending six months after the date of the cancellation.
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In addition, there was no oral or written agreement or implied promise by the Group to compensate the canceled option holders
for any increases in the market price of the Group’s stock after the cancellation. The options were not canceled for nonperfor-
mance or termination of employment. At the cancellation, the unrecognized compensation cost was recorded with a charge to
income and a credit to additional paid in capital.

The activity in outstanding options for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, is set forth below:

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Beginning of year 2,132,630 $13.40 1,980,323 $14.16 1,522,757 $17.20
Transactions before stock dividend:
Options granted 25,000 18.95 96,500 18.05 1,187,000 12.62
Options exercised {158,570) 8.81 (123,768) 9.57 (80,333) 495
Options forfeited (74,479) 8.97 {37,331} 14.06 (281,267) 16.91
Options cancelled (271,500) 24.04 {367,834) 21.64
1,924,581 14.02 1,644,224 13.10 1,980,323 14.16
Stock dividend effect 481,145 1.22 164,422 1.9
Transactions after stock dividend:
Options granted 15,000 20.24 375,000 20.21
Options exercised (361,381) 9.24 (42,670) 11.38
Options forfeited (183,301} 10.65 (8,346) 12.78
End of year 1,876,044 $11.42 2,132,630 $13.40 1,980,323 $14.16

The following table summarizes the range of exercise prices and the weighted average remaining contractual life of the options
outstanding at June 30, 2003

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Average Average Number Average

of Exercise  Contract Life of Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Options Price (Years) Options Price

$2.16 to $4.36 33,637 $3.28 - 33,537 $3.28
5.82 to 8.07 76,283 7.34 3.0 28,460 8.07
8.68 t0 9.75 992,017 9.17 7.2 93,228 9.25
122210 13.95 296,624 12.719 59 109,728 12.27
15.27 t0 16.13 410,375 16.12 87 2,750 15.27
16.36 to 18.08 30,958 17.44 8.7 375 16.36
18.75 to 20.24 36,250 19.77 9.4 - -
$2.16 to $20.24 1,876,044 $11.42 71 268,078 $9.69
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Earnings per Common Share

The calculation of earnings per common share after the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows:

June 30,
{In thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net income $51,320 $38,451 $8,469
Less: Preferred stock dividend (2,387) {2,387) (2,387)
Net income available to common stockholders $48,933 $36,064 $6,082
Earnings per common share - basic:
Netincome - available to common stockholders $48,933 $36,064 $6,082
Weighted average common shares outstanding 17,396 17,139 17,245
Earnings per commaon share - basic $ 281 $ 210 $ 035
Earnings per common share - diluted:
Net income - available to common stockholders $48,933 $36,064 $6,082
Weighted average common shares and share equivalents;
Average common shares outstanding 17,396 17,139 17,245
Common stock equivalents - options 1,091 864 313
Tota! 18,487 18,003 17,558
Earnings per common share - diluted $ 265 $ 200 $ 035

For the year ended June 30, 2003, all stock options outstanding at June 30, 2003 had a dilutive effect on earnings per share. For
the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, stock options without a dilutive effect on earnings per share not included in the calcu-
lation amounted to 396,000 and 1,335,000, respectively.

Legal Surplus

The Banking Act of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico requires that a minimum of 10% of the Bank’s net income for the year be
transferred to capital surplus until such surplus equals the total of paid in capital on common and preferred stocks. At June 30,
2003, legal surplus amounted to $21,099,000 {2002 - $15,997,000). The amount transferred to the legal surplus account is not avail-
able for payment of dividends to shareholders. In addition, the Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement that bank
holding companies should generally pay dividends only from operating earnings of the current and preceding two years.

Preferred Stock

In May 1999, the Group issued 1,340,000 shares of its 7.125% Non-Cumulative Monthly Income Preferred Stock Series A at $25
per share. The Series A Preferred Stock has the following characteristics: (1) annual dividends of $1.78 per share, payable
monthly, if declared by the Board of Directors; missed dividends are not cumulative, {2) redeemable at the Group’s option begin-
ning on May 30, 2004, (3) no mandatory redemption or stated maturity date and {4) liquidation value of $25 per share.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax, as of June 30 consisted of:

(In thousands) 2003 2002
Unrealized loss on derivatives designated as cash flows hedges $(41,778) $(21,702)
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale 41,469 28,566
Transition adjustment of SFAS No. 133 - (34)

Total $  {309) $ 6830
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Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Group {(on a consclidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Group's and Bank's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Group and the
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provi-
sions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Group and the Bank to maintain mini-
mum amaounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weight-
ed assets (as defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Group
and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of June 30, 2003, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the Bank as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, an institution
must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables. There
are no conditions or events since the notification that have changed the Bank’s category. The Group’s and the Bank’s actual cap-
ital amounts and ratios as of June 30, were as follows:

Minimum To Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Capital Corrective Action
Actual Requirement Provisions

{Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Group Ratios

As of June 30, 2003

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $240,010 25.00% $76,800 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier | Risk-Based (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $234,979 24.48% $38,400 4.00% N/A N/A
Tier | Capital (to Average Assets) $234,979 8.19% $114,720 4.00% N/A N/A
As of June 30, 2002

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $197,459 22.10% $71,469 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier | Risk-Based (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $194,420 21.76% $35,735 4,00% N/A N/A
Tier | Capital {to Average Assets) $194,420 7.80% $99,694 4.00% N/A N/A
Bank Ratios

As of June 30, 2003

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets $191,340 22.08% $69,336 8.00% $86,670 10.00%
Tier | Risk-Based (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $186,309 21.50% $34,668 4,00% $52,002 6.00%
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets) $186,309 6.44% $115,659 4.00% $144,574 5.00%
As of June 30, 2002

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $149,824 21.10% $56,796 8.00% $70,996 10.00%
Tier | Risk-Based (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $146,785 20.68% $28,398 4.00% $42,597 6.00%
Tier | Capital {to Average Assets) $146,785 5.78% $101,497 4.00% $126,872 5.00%

The Group’s ability to pay dividends to its stockholders and other activities can be restricted if its capital falls below levels estab-
lished by the Federal Reserve Board’s guidelines. In addition, any bank holding company whose capital falls below levels spec-
ified in the guidelines can be required to implement a plan to increase capital.
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3. Investments

Investment Securities

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, fair value, and average weighted yield of the securities owned by the
Group at June 30, 2003 and 2002, were as follows:

June 30, 2003 (In thousands) Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair Weighted
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
Available-for-Sale:
US Treasury securities $ 54,444 $ 172 $803 § 53813 3.49%
Puerto Rico Government and agencies obligations 45,914 3,195 32 50,077 5.95%
Other debt securities 9,368 1,434 - 10,802 9.04%
Total security investments 110,726 4,801 835 114,692
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA and FHLMC certificates 1,638,567 29,061 1,673 1,665,955 4.59%
GNMA certificates 206,013 5318 110 211,221 4.78%
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMQs) 207,174 8,876 314 215,736 5.68%
Total mortgage-backed securities 2,051,754 43,255 2,097 2,092,912
Total securities available-for-sale $2,162,480 $48,056 $2932  $2,207,604 4.713%
June 30, 2002 (In thousands) Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair Weighted
Cost Gains Losses Value Yield
Available-for-Sale
US Treasury securities $ 3293 $ 188 $ - § 3481 5,78%
Puerto Rico Government and agencies abligations 49,842 106 95 49,853 6.11%
Other debt securities 9,360 405 - 9,765 8.98%
Total security investments 62,495 699 95 63,099
Mortgage-backed securities:
FNMA and FHLMC certificates 1,169,484 24,327 260 1,193,551 6.17%
GNMA certificates 213,896 6,504 87 220,313 6.87%
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 249,231 3,648 18 252,861 6.30%
Total mortgage-backed securities 1,632,611 34,478 365 1,666,725
Total securities available-for-sale $1,695,106 $35,178 $460  $1,729,824 6.29%

The amortized cost and fair value of the Group’s investment securities at June 30, 2003, by cantractual maturity {excluding mort-
gage-backed securities), are shown in the next table. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

June 30, 2003 (In thousands) Available-for-sale

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Due after 1to 5 years $ 63971 § 63763
Due after 5to 10 years 6,499 7147
Due after 10 years 40,256 43,781
Total 110,726 114,691
Mortgage-backed securities 2,051,754 2,092,913
$2,162,480 $2,207,604

3
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Proceeds from the sale of investment securities available-for-sale, including those sold but not yet collected, during fiscal 2003
totaled $611,378,000 (2002 - $329,654,000; 2001 - $546,550,000). Gross realized gains and losses on those sales during fiscal 2003
were $16,794,000 and $2,571,000, respectively (2002 - $5,480,000 and $1,118,000, respectively; 2001 - $7,393,000 and $8,568,000,
respectively).

With the adoption of SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No.138 (see Note 9), in fiscal 2001 the Group transferred the held-to-maturity port-
folio to the available-for-sale investment category. As of July 1, 2000, the unrealized loss on those securities amounting to
$26,633,000 was recorded in other comprehensive income as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Trading Securities
A summary of trading securities owned by the Group at June 30, is as follows:

(In thousands) 2003 2002
Puerto Rico Government and agencies obligations $ 131 $2,853
Mortgage-backed securities 51 6,406
Equity securities 855 -

$1,037 $9,259

At June 30, 2003, the Group's trading portfolio weighted average yield was 5.22% (2002 - 5.94%).

4, Pledged Assets

At June 30, 2003, residential and commercial mortgage loans amounting to $485,017,000 were pledged to secure advances and
borrowings from the FHLB. Investment securities with fair values totaling $1,446,385,000, $206,637,000, $16,055,000 and $51,837,000
at June 30, 2003, were pledged to secure investment securities sold under agreements to repurchase {see Note 8), public fund
deposits (see Note 7), term notes {see Note 8) and interest rate swap agreements, respectively. Also, investment securities with
fair values totaling $214,000 and $129,800 at June 30, 2003, were pledged to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and to the
Puerto Rico Treasury Department (for the Group’s International Banking Entity), respectively.

5. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans Receivable
The compasition of the Group’s loan portfolio at June 30, was as follows:

{In thousands) 2003 2002

Loans secured by real estate:
Residential - 1 to 4 family $584,009 $415,635
Non-residential real estate loans 3,500 3,449
Home equity loans and secured personal loans 87,016 97,798
Commercial 27175 30,906
701,700 547,788
Less: deferred loan fees, net {13,001) (10,010)
688,049 531,778

Other loans:

Commercial 16,756 10,540
Personal consumer loans and credit lines 20,530 21,931
Financing leases, net of unearned interest 42 295
Less: deferred loan fees, net {82) {35)
36,246 32,671
Loans recsivable 724,295 570,449
Allowance for loan losses (5,031) {3,039)
Loans receivable 719,264 567,410
Loans held-for-sale (residential 1 to 4 family mortgage loans) 9,198 9,360
Total loans receivable, net $728,462 $576,770
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At June 30, 2003, residential mortgage loans held-for-sale amounted to $9,198,000 (2002 - $9,360,000). All residential mortgage
loans originated and sold during fiscal 2003 were sold based on pre-established commitments or at market values. In fiscal 2003,
the Group recognized gains of $6,494,000 (2002 - $7,136,000; 2001 - $7,783,000) in these sales that are presented in the statements
of income as part of the mortgage-banking activities.

On July 7, 2000, the Group sold approximately $167.5 million of its non-delinquent unsecured personal laan and lease portfolios
to a local financial institution. At June 30, 2000, these loans were under a contract to sell, thus they were valued by reference to
the contracted price. A loss of $1.2 million was recorded in fiscal 2000 in connection with this contract. In fiscal 2001, the Group
realized a $914,000 gain on the sale of loans that had been previously written off.

At June 30, 2003, loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued amounted to approximately $10,350,000 (2002 -
$10,196,000; 2001 - $6,537,000). The gross interest income that would have been recorded in fiscal 2003 if non-accrual loans had
performed in accardance with their original terms amounted to approximately $648,000 (2002 - $724,000; 2001 - $664,000).

Allowance for Loan Losses
The changes in the aliowance for loan losses for the last three fiscal years ended June 30, were as follows:

(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Balance at beginning of year $3,039 $2,856 $6.837
Provision for loan losses 4,190 2117 2,903
Loans charged-off (3,095 (2,839) (9,030)
Recoveries 897 905 2,146
Balance at end of year $5,031 $3,039 $2,856

As described in Note 1 under the heading “Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses”, the Group evaluates all loans, some individ-
ually and others as homogeneous groups, for purposes of determining impairment. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Group deter-
mined that no specific impairment allowance was required for those loans evaluated for impairment.

Concentration of Risk
Substantially all loans in the Group are to residents in Puerto Rico; therefore, the loan portfolio is susceptible to events affecting
Puerto Rico’s economy. The vast majority of the loans are well collateralized, thus reducing the risk of potential losses.

6. Non-Interest Earning Assets

Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment at June 30, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization as follows:

Useful Life {In thousands)

{Years) 2003 2002

Land - $ 1112 $ 1,332
Buildings and improvements 40 5,536 6,853
Leasehold improvements 5-10 6,914 5,356
Furniture and fixtures 3-7 5141 5,052
EDP and other equipment 3-7 9,317 10,367
28,080 28,960

Less: accumulated depreciation and amartization (11,918) (10,972)

$16,162 $17,988

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment for the year ended June 30, 2003 totaled $4,692,000 (2002- $4,371,000;
2001 - $4,564,000). These are included in the statements of income as part of occupancy and equipment expenses.
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Accrued Interest Receivable and Other Assets:
Accrued interest receivable at June 30, 2003 consists of $7,501,000 from loans (2002 - $5,562,000) and $10,215,000 from invest-
ments (2002 - $10,136,000).

Other assets at June 30, include the following:

(In thousands) 2003 2002
Investment in equity options $ 6,787 $12,145
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,478 7413
Income tax receivable 2,313 6,358
Deferred tax asset, net (Note 12) 3731 5,558
Accounts receivable and other assets, net 4,106 3,083
Goodwill 2,008 356

$26,423 $34913

7. Deposits and Related Interest

At June 30, 2003, the weighted average interest rate of the Group’s deposits was 3.30% (2002 - 3.85%) considering non-interest
bearing deposits of $63,919,000 {2002 - $67,142,000). Interest expense for the last three fiscal years ended June 30, is set forth
below:

{In thousands) 2003 2002 2001
NOW accounts and saving deposits $2373 $ 3,361 $3,128
Certificates of deposit and IRA accounts 31,284 30,227 33,516

$33,657 $33,588 $36,642

At June 30, 2003, time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or higher amounted to $329,163,000 (2002 - $335,508,000) including:
(i) brokered certificates of deposit of $62,683,000 (2002 - $31,736,000) at a weighted average rate of 2.22%, (2002- 2.88%}; and (ii)
public fund deposits from various local government agencies of $185,015,000 (2002 - $225,446,000) at a weighted average rate of
1.31% (2002 - 2.65%), which were collateralized with investment securities of $206,637,000 (2002 - $223,047,000).

Scheduled maturities of time deposits and IRA accounts at June 30, 2003 are as follow:

(In thousands)

Within one year:

Three (3) months or less $230,567
Over 3 months through 1 year 270,385
500,952

Over 1through 2 years 103,705
Over 2 through 3 years 117,205
Over 3 through 4 years 54,883
Over 4 through 5 years 26,945
Over 5 years 14,205

$817,895
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8. Borrowings

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

At June 30, 2003, securities underlying agreements to repurchase were delivered tg, and are being held by, the counterparties
with whom the repurchase agreements were transacted. The counterparties have agreed to resell to the Group the same or sim-
ilar securities at the maturity of the agreements.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (“reverse repurchase agreements”) at June 30, 2003 mature as follows: within
30 days - $1,162,472,000; and between 31 to 90 days - $238,126,000.

At June 30, 2003, securities sold under agreements to repurchase (classified by counterparty) were as follows:

(In thousands)

Fair Value of

Borrowing  Underlying

Balance Coliateral

Lehman Brothers Inc. $ 700480 $ 729384
Citicorp Securities Markets, Inc. 418,733 425,447
Bear Stearns & Company, Inc. 93,280 95,957
Morgan Stanley Dean Witter 111,951 117,140
Bank of America 76,154 78,457
1,400,598 1,446,385

Accrued interest 1,063 6,731
Total $1,401,661 $1,453,116

Borrowings under reverse repurchase agreements at June 30, were collateralized as follows:

{In thousands) 2003 2002
Fair Value of Fair Value of
Borrowing Underlying Borrowing Underlying
Balance Collateral Balance Collateral
GNMA certificates $44,291 $45,451 $74,481 $77,787
FNMA certificates 696,584 715,145 530,114 614,218
FNMA sold but not yet delivered - - 10,747 11,027
FHLMC 505,557 522,609 312135 321,301
CMO 154,166 163,180 9,392 6,941
Total $1,400598  $1,446,385 $996,869  $1,031,274

At June 30, 2003, the weighted average interest rate of the Group's repurchase agreements was 1.12% (2002 - 1.84%) and includ-
ed agreements with interest ranging from 0.97% to 1.28% (2002 - from 1.81% to 1.88%). The following summarizes significant data
on securities sold under agreements to repurchase for fiscals 2003 and 2002;

{In thousands) 2003 2002
Average daily aggregate balance outstanding $1,158,243 $ 998,069
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end $1,400,598  $1,148,846
Weighted average interest rate during the year 2.92% 3.98%
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Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
At June 30, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) cansist of the following:

Maturity date Interest Rate Description 2003 2002
{In thousands)

July-2002 Fixed - 2.04% s - $ 3,200
May-2003 Fixed - 4.83% - 50,000
June-2003 Fixed - 2.43% - 25,000
July-2003 Fixed - 2.84% 25,000 25,000
July-2003 Fixed - 4.70% 50,000 50,000
November-2003 Fixed - 2.90% 5,000 5,000
March-2004 Fixed - 3.52% 25,000 25,000
June-2004 Fixed - 3.37% 25,000 25,000

$130,000 $208,200

Advances are received from the FHLB under an agreement whereby the Group is required to maintain a minimum amount of qual-
ifying collateral with a market value of at least 110% of the outstanding advances. At June 30, 2003, these advances were
secured by mortgage loans amounting to $485,017,000. Also, at June 30, 2003, the Group has an additional borrowing capacity
with the FHLB of $263 million.

Term Notes ‘
At June 30, 2003 there was one term note outstanding in the amount of $15,000,000, with a floating interest rate due quarterly
(2003 - 1.11%; 2002 - 2.05%), a maturity date of March 27, 2007, and secured by investment securities amounting to $16,055,000
{2002 - $16,651,000).

Subordinated Capital Notes

In October 2001, Oriental Financial {PR) Statutory Trust |, a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of the Group, was formed
for the purpose of issuing trust redeemable preferred securities. On December 18, 2001, $35 million of trust redeemable preferred
securities were issued by the Statutory Trust as part of a pooled underwriting transaction. Pooled underwriting involves partic-
ipating with other bank holding companies in issuing the securities through a special purpose pooling vehicle created by the
underwriters, The securities have a par value of $35 million, bear interest based on 3 months LIBOR plus 360 basis points (4.72%
and 5.48% at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) {provided, however, that prior to December 18, 2006, this interest rate shall not
exceed 12.5%), payable quarterly, and mature on December 23, 2031. The securities may be redeemed at par after five years. The
proceeds from this issuance were used to purchase a like amount of floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest deben-
tures issued by the Group, which have the same maturity and call provisions as the trust redeemable preferred securities.

These trust redeemable preferred securities are accounted for as a liability on the consolidated statements of financial condi-
tion and referred to as subordinated capital notes. Dividends on the trust redeemable preferred securities are accounted for as
interest expense on an accrual basis. These debts are treated as Tier-1 capital for regulatory purposes.

Unused Lines of Credit

The Group maintains various lines of credit with other financial institutions from which funds are drawn as needed. At June 30,
2003 and 2002, the Group's total available funds under these lines of credit totaled $24,400,000. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, there
was no balance outstanding under these lines of credit.

Contractual Maturities
At June 30, 2003, the contractual maturities of securities sold under agreements to repurchase, advances from the FHLB, term
notes and subordinated capital notes by fiscal year are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, (In thousands)
Reverse
Repurchase Advances Subordinated
Agreements from FHLB Term Notes Capital Notes
2004 $1,400,598 $130,000
2007 $15,000
2032 $35,000
$1,400,598 $130,000 $15,000 $35,000
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9. Derivatives Activities

The Group utilizes various derivative instruments for hedging purposes, such as asset/liability management. These transactions
involve both credit and market risk. The notional amounts are amounts on which calculations and payments are based. Notional
amounts do not represent direct credit exposures. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net difference between the calculat-
ed amounts to be received and paid, if any. The actual risk of loss is the cost of replacing, at market, these contracts in the event
of default by the counterparties. The Group controls the credit risk of its derivative financial instrument agreements through
credit approvals, limits, monitoring procedures and collateral, when considered necessary.

The Group generally uses interest rate swaps and interest rate options, such as caps and options, in managing its interest rate
risk exposure. The swaps were entered into to convert short-term borrowings into fixed rate liabilities for longer periods and
provide protection against increases in short-term interest rates. Under these swaps, the Group pays a fixed monthly or quar-
terly cost and receives a floating thirty or ninety-day payment based on LIBOR. Floating rate payments received from the swap
counterparties correspond to the floating rate payments made on the short-term borrowings thus resulting in a net fixed rate cost
to the Group. Under the caps, the Group pays an up front premium or fee for the right to receive cash flow payments in excess
of the predetermined cap rate; thus, effectively capping its interest rate cost for the duration of the agreement.

Derivative instruments are recognized as assets and liabilities at fair value. If certain conditions are met, the derivative may qual-
ify for hedge accounting treatment and be designated as one of the following types of hedges: (a) hedge of the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment {“fair value hedge”); (b} a hedge
of the exposure to variability of cash flows of a recognized asset, liability or forecasted transaction (“cash flow hedge”) or (c) a
hedge of foreign currency exposure {“foreign currency hedge”).

In the case of a qualifying fair value hedge, changes in the value of the derivative instruments that have been highly effective
are recognized in current period earnings along with the change in value of the designated hedged item. In the case of a quali-
fying cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the derivative instruments that have been highly effective are recognized in other
comprehensive income, until such time as those earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows of the underlying
hedged item. In either a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedgg, net earnings may be impacted to the extent the changes in the
value of the derivative instruments do not perfectly offset changes in the value of the hedged items. If the derivative is not des-
ignated as a hedging instrument, the changes in fair value of the derivative are recorded in earnings.

Certain contracts contain embedded derivatives. When the embedded derivative possesses economic characteristics that are
not clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the host contract, itis bifurcated, carried at fair value, and des-
ignated as a trading or non-hedging derivative instrument.

The Group’s swaps, excluding those used to manage exposure to the stock market, and caps outstanding and their terms at June
30, are set forth in the table below:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Swaps:

Pay fixed swaps notional amount $650,000 $500,000
Weighted average pay rate - fixed 3.97% 4.77%
Weighted average receive rate - floating 1.24% 1.84%
Maturity in months 1t0 88 1to 100
Floating rate as a percent of LIBOR 100% 100%
Caps:

Cap agreements notional amount $ 75,000 $200,000
Cap rate 4.50% 4.81%
Current 90 day LIBOR 1.31% 1.86%

Maturity in months 10 211059
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The Group offers its customers certificates of depasit with an option tied to the performance of the Standard & Poor’s 500 stock
market index. At the end of five years, the depositor will receive a specified percentage of the average increase of the month-
end value of the stock index. If the index decreases, the depositor receives the principal without any interest. The Group uses
swap and option agreements with major money center banks and major broker dealer companies to manage its exposure to
changes in those indexes. Under the terms of the option agreements, the Group will receive the average increase in the month-
end value of the corresponding index in exchange for a fixed premium. Under the term of the swap agreements, the Group will
receive the average increase in the month-end value of the corresponding index in exchange for a quarterly fixed interest cost.
The changes in fair value of the options purchased, the swap agreements and the options embedded in the certificates of deposit
are recorded in earnings.

Derivatives instruments are generally negotiated over-the-counter ("OTC”) contracts. Negotiated OTC derivatives are generally
entered into between two counterparties that negotiate specific agreement terms, including the underlying instrument, amount,
exercise price and maturity.

Information pertaining to the notional amounts of the Group’s derivative financial instruments as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 is as
follows:

Notional Amount (In thousands) 2003 2002
Type of Contract:
Cash Flows Hedging Activities - Interest rate swaps used

to hedge a forecasted transaction - short-term borrowings $650,000 $500,000

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedge:
Interest rate swaps used to manage exposure to the stack market

on stock indexed deposits $ 7450 $ 29,200
Purchased options used to manage exposure to the stock market

on stock indexed deposits 232,800 196,940
Embedded aptions on stock indexed depaosits 229,574 222,560
Caps 75,000 200,000

$544,824 $648,700

At June 30, 2003, the contractual maturities of interest rate swaps and caps, and equity indexed options, by fiscal year were as
follows:

{In thousands) Equity Indexed
Cash Flows Options and Equity Indexed

Year Ending June 30, Hedging Swaps Caps Swaps Purchased Options Sold
2004 ‘ $200,000 $75,000 $40,750 $ 35,582
2005 50,000 - 51,000 49,117
20086 250,000 - 54,150 53,678
2007 - - 58,490 56,908
2008 - - 35,860 34,289
2011 150,000 - - -

$650,000 $75,000 $240,250 $229,574

During fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, $4.0 million, $2.0 million and $3.9 million, respectively, of losses were charged to earn-
ings and reflected as “Derivatives Activities” in the consolidated statements of income. Unrealized losses of $20.2 million, $12.5
million and $9.5 million, respectively, on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges were included in other comprehensive
income during the same periods. Ineffectiveness of $17,308 was credited to earnings during fiscal year 2003. No ineffectiveness
was charged to earnings during fiscal years 2002 and 2001.

At June 30, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of derivatives was recognized as either assets or liahilities in the consolidated state-
ments of financial condition as follows: the fair value of the interest rate swaps used to manage the exposure to the stock mar-
ket on stock indexed deposits represented a liability of $315,804 and $1.8 million, respectively; the purchased options used to
manage the exposure to the stock market on stock indexed deposits represented an other asset of $7.4 million and $10.3 million,
respectively; and the options sold to customers embedded in the certificates of deposit represented a liability of $7.2 million and
$10.5 million, respectively, recorded in deposits. The fair value of the interest rate swaps represented a liability of $42.8 million
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and $22.6 million, respectively, presented in accrued expenses and other liabilities. The caps did not have carrying value as of
June 30, 2003, and a fair value of $4.3 million as of June 30, 2002 was presented in other assets.

10. Employee Benefit Plan:

The Group has a cash or deferred arrangement profit sharing plan qualified under Section 1165(e} of the Puerto Rico Internal
Revenue Code of 1994, as amended (“the Code”), covering all full-time employees of the Group who have six months of service
and are age twenty-one or older. Under this plan, participants may contribute each year from 2% to 10% of their compensation,
as defined, up to a specified amount. The Group contributes 80 cents for each dollar contributed by an employee, up to $832 per
employee. The Group’s matching contribution is invested in shares of its common stock. The plan is entitled to acquire and hold
qualified employer securities as part of its investment of the trust assets pursuant to ERISA Section 407. During fiscal year 2003
the Group contributed 6,723 {2002 - 5,637; 2001 - 7,873) shares of its common stock with a market value of approximately $172,700
(2002 - $143,000; 2001 - $111,000) at the time of contribution. The Group's contribution becomes 100% vested once the employee
attains three years of service.

11. Related Party Transactions:

The Group grants loans to its directors, executive officers and to certain related individuals or organizations in the ordinary
course of business. These loans are offered at the same terms as loans to non-related parties. The movement and balance of
these loans were as follows:

(in thousands) 2003 2002
Balance at the beginning of year 82,776 $2,905
New loans 1,716 1,47
Payments (745) (1,600)
Balance at the end of year $3,747 $2,776

12. Income Tanx:

Under the Code, all companies are treated as separate taxable entities and are not entitled to file consolidated returns. The
Group and its subsidiaries are subject to Puerto Rico regular income tax or ailternative minimum tax (“AMT") on income earned
from all sources. The AMT is payable if it exceeds regular income tax. The excess of AMT over regular income tax paid in any
one year may be used to offset regular income tax in future years, subject to certain limitations.

The components of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended June 30, follows:

{In thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Current income tax expense (benefit) $4,208 $2,200 $(1,219)
Deferred income tax expense{benefit) 78 {1,480) {99)
Income tax expense (benefit} $4,284 $720 $(1,318)

The Group maintained an effective tax rate lower than the statutory rate of 39% mainly due to the interest income arising from
certain mortgage loans, investments and mortgage-backed securities exempt for Puerto Rico income tax purposes, net of
expenses attributable to the exempt income. In addition, the Code provides a dividend received deduction of 100%, on dividends
received from wholly-owned subsidiaries subject to income taxation in Puerto Rico. During fiscal 2003, the Group generated tax-
exempt interest income of $82,618,000 (2002 -$80,535,000; 2001 - $74,176,000). Exempt interest relates mostly to interest earned on
obligations of the United States and Puerto Rico Governments and certain mortgage-backed securities, including securities held
by the Group’s International Banking Entity.
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The reconciliation between the Puerto Rico income tax statutory rate and the effective tax rate as reported for each of the last
three fiscal years ended June 30, follows:

(Doliars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Statutory rate $21,686 39.0% $15,277 39.0% $2,853 39.0%
Increase {decrease) in rate resulting from:

Exempt interest income, net (20,923) -37.6% {14,990) -38.3% (4,369) -59.7%

Non deductible charges 925 1.7% 331 0.8% 675 9.2%

Tax assessment covering prior years 1,800 3.2%

Qther items, net 796 1.4% 102 0.3% (477} -6.5%
Income tax expense (benefit) $4,284 1.7% $720 1.8% $(1,318) -18.0%

In July 2003, the Group and the Puerto Rico Treasury Department settled an investigation of the Bank’s income tax returns for the
years ended June 30, 1997, 1998 and 1999 for $1.8 million.

Deferred income tax reflects the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

for financial reporting and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The components of the Group's deferred tax asset, net at
June 30, were as follows:

{In thousands) 2003 2002
Allowance for loan losses $1,962 $1,185
Deferred gain on sale of servicing rights 2,773 1,884
Realized losses on capital assets 21 511
Unrealized losses on derivative activities 44 1,460
Deferred loan origination fees 4,756 3,547
Other temporary differences - amn
Total deferred tax assets 9,556 8,998
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensive income (3,728) (1,977)
Deferred loan origination costs (2,097) {1,463)
Tota! deferred tax liabilities (5,825) {3,440)
Deferred tax asset, net $3,731 $5.558

No valuation allowance was deemed necessary as of June 30, 2003 and 2002.

13. Commitmeants:

Loan Commitments

At Jung 30, 2003, there were $21,748,000 (2002 - $15,836,000) of unused lines of credit provided to customers and $5,738,000 in
commitments to originate loans (2002 - $4,423,000). Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long
as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and may
require payment of a fee. Since the commitments may expire unexercised, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. The Group evaluates each customer’s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The
amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Group upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit eval-
uation of the customer.
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Lease Commitments

The Group has entered into various operating lease agreements for branch facilities and administrative offices. Rent expense
for fiscal 2003 amounted to $2,808,000 (2002 - $2,092,000; 2001 - $1,511,000). As of June 30, 2003, future rental commitments under
the terms of the leases, exclusive of taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses payable by the Group, are summarized as fol-
lows:

Year Ending June 30, Minimum Rent (In thousands)
2004 $1,842
2005 1,717
2006 1,575
2007 1,153
2008 1,082
Thereafter 2435

$9,804

14. Litigation:

On August 14, 1998, as a result of a review of its accounts in connection with the admission by a former Group officer of having
embezzled funds, and manipulated bank accounts and records, the Group became aware of certain irregularities. The Group
notified the appropriate regulatory authorities and commenced an intensive investigation with the assistance of forensic
accountants, fraud experts and legal counsel. The investigation determined losses of $3.6 million {$5.8 net of tax) resulting from
dishonest and fraudulent acts and omissions involving several former Group employees, which were submitted to the Group’s
fidelity insurance policy (“Policy”) issued by Federal Insurance Company, Inc. (“FIC”}. In the opinion of the Group’s management,
its legal counsel and experts, the losses determined by the investigation were covered by the policy. However, FIC denied all
claims for such losses. On August 11, 2000, the Group filed a lawstuit in the United States District Court for the district of Puerto
Rico against FIC, a stock insurance corporation organized under the laws of the State of Indiana, for breach of insurance con-
tract, breach of covenant of good faith and fair dealing and damages, seeking payment of the Group's $9.6 million insurance claim
loss and the payment of consequential damages of no less than $13.0 million resulting from FIC capricious, arbitrary fraudulent
and without cause denial of the Group’s claim. The trial in this case, although scheduled to be held on September 2, 2003, was
postponed by the court as a result of certain open procedural matters and the court’s obligation to give priority to criminal trials
over civil trials under the Speedy Trial Act. The court does intend on trying this case on a preferred basis, if applicable, when an
appropriate opening in the civil calendar is available. The losses resulted from such dishonest and fraudulent acts and omis-
sions were expensed in prior years.

In addition, the Group and its subsidiaries are defendants in a number of legal proceedings incidental to its business. The Group
is vigorously contesting such claims. Based upon a review by legal counsel and the development of these matters to date, man-
agement is of the opinion that the ultimate aggregate liability, if any, resulting from these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s financial position or the results of operations.

15. Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

The reported fair values of financial instruments are based on either quoted market prices for identical or comparable instru-
ments or estimated based on assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and assumed dis-
count rates reflecting varying degrees of risk. Accordingly, the fair values may not represent the actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as of year-end or that will be realized in the future.

The fair value estimates are made at a point in time based on the type of financial instruments and related relevant market infor-
mation. Quoted market prices are used for financial instruments in which an active market exists. However, because no market
exists for a portion of the Group’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding the amount and
timing of estimated future cash flows, assumed discount rates reflecting varying degrees of risk, and other factors. Because of
the uncertainty inherent in estimating fair values, these estimates may vary from the values that would have been used had a
ready market for these financial instruments existed.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could affect these fair value estimates. The fair value estimates do not take
into consideration the value of future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not financial instruments. Other sig-
nificant tangible and intangible assets that are not considered financial instruments are the value of long-term customer rela-
tionships of the retail deposits, and premises and equipment.
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The estimated fair value and carrying value of the Group's financial instruments at June 30, is as follows:

{In thousands) 2003 2002
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 15,945 $ 15945 $ 9280 $ 9,280
Money market investments 187 787 1,032 1,032
Time deposits with other banks 365 365 - -
Trading securities 1,037 1,037 9,259 9,259
Investment securities available-for-sale 2,207,604 2,207,604 1,729,824 1,729,824
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock 22,537 22,537 17,320 17,320
Securities and loans sold but yet not delivered 1,894 1,894 71,750 71,750
Total loans (including loans held-for-sale) 772,398 728,462 597,637 576,770
Equity options and caps purchased 6,787 6,787 12,145 12,145
Accrued interest receivable 17,716 17,7116 15,698 15,698
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits, including accrued interest 1,023,992 1,044,265 962,023 968,850
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,400,551 1,400,598 996,869 996,869
Advances and borrowings from FHLB 130,233 130,000 208,981 208,200
Subordinated capital notes 34,976 35,000 35,000 35,000
Term notes 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Securities purchased but not yet received 152,219 152,219 56,195 56,195
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 60,706 60,706 37,767 31,767
(In thousands) 2003 2002
Contract or Contract or
Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Qff-Balance Sheet Items:
Liabilities:
Commitments to extend credit $5,738 ${115) $4,423 $(88)
Unused lines of credit 21,748 {435) 15,836 (317}

The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of significant financial instruments at June 30,

2003 and 2002:

* Cash and due from banks, money market investments, time deposits with other banks, securities and loans sold but not yet
delivered, accrued interest receivable and payable, securities purchased but not yet received, accrued expenses and other lia-
bilities have been valued at the carrying amounts reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as these are
reasonable estimates of fair value given the short-term nature of the instruments.

* The fair value of investment securities is estimated based on bid quotations from securities dealers. If a quoted market price
is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. Investments in FHLB stock are valued

at their redemption value.
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* The estimated fair value for loans held-for-sale is based on secondary market prices or contractual agreements to sell. The
fair value of the loan portfolio has been estimated for loan portfolios with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregat-
ed by type, such as commercial, real estate mortgage and consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into fixed and
adjustable interest rates and by performing and non-performing categories. The fair value of performing loans is calculated by
discounting contractual cash flows, adjusted for prepayment estimates, if any, using estimated current market discount rates
that reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The fair value for significant non-performing loans is based on
specific evaluations of discounted expected future cash flows from the loans or its collateral using current appraisals and mar-
ket rates.

* The fair value of non-interest bearing demand deposits, savings and NOW accounts is the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is based on the discounted value of the contractual cash
flows, using estimated current market discount rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

* For short-term borrowings, the carrying amount is considered a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of long-term
borrowings is based on the discounted value of the contractual cash flows, using current estimated market discount rates for
borrowings with similar terms and remaining maturities.

* The fair value of interest rate swap and interest rate option contracts was obtained from dealer quotes. This value represents
the estimated amount the Group would receive or pay to terminate the contracts, at the reporting date, taking into account cur-
rent interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the contracts counterparties.

* The fair value of commitments to extend credit is based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into
account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standings.

16. Segment Reporting:

In fiscal 2001 and 2002, the Group operated the following three major reportable segments: Financial Services, Mortgage
Banking, and Retail Banking. In the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Group segregated its businesses into the following new major
reportable segments of business: Retail Banking, Treasury and Financial Services. As required by GAAP, consolidated financial
statements published by the Group will reflect modifications to its reportable segments resulting from this organizational change,
including reclassification of all comparable prior period segment information.

Management determined the reportable segments based on the internal reporting used to evaluate performance and to assess
where to allocate resources. Other factors such as the Group’s organizational chart, nature of products, distribution channels
and economic characteristics of the products were also considered in the determination of the reportable segments. The Group
measures the performance of these reportable segments, based on pre-established goals of different financial parameters such
as net income, net interest income, loan production, and fees generated.

The Group’s two largest business segments are Retail Banking and Treasury. Retail Banking includes the Bank’s branches and
mortgage banking, with traditional banking products such as deposits and mortgage, commercial and consumer loans. The mort-
gage banking activities are carried out by the Bank’s mortgage banking division, which principal activity is to originate and pur-
chase mortgage loans for the Group’s own portfolio. From time to time, if conditions so warrant, it may sell loans to other finan-
cial institutions or securitize conforming loans into GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC certificates using another institution as issuer. The
other institution services mortgages included in the resulting GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC pools. The Group also sells the rights
to service mortgage loans for others. The Treasury segment encompasses all of the Group’s treasury functions.

The Group's third largest business segment is Financial Services. It is comprised of the Bank's trust division (Oriental Trust), the
brokerage subsidiary (Oriental Financial Services Corp.), the insurance agency subsidiary {Oriental Insurance, Inc.), and the
recently acquired pension plan administration subsidiary {Caribbean Pension Consultants, Inc.). The core operations of this seg-
ment are financial planning, money management and investment brokerage services, insurance sales activity, corporate and
individual trust services, as well as pension plan administration services.

Intersegment sales and transfers, if any, are accounted for as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, that is, at current
market prices.
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The financial information presented in the next table was derived from the internal management accounting system and are
based on internal management accounting policies. The information presented does not necessarily represent each segment’s
financial condition and result of operations as if they were independent parties. Other segments include the transactions of the
Group parent company only, the Statutory Trust and Oriental Mortgage. Following are the results of operations and the selected
financial infarmation by operating segment for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003:

(In thousands) Total Consol-
Retail Financial Major Other idated
Banking Treasury Services Segments Segments Eliminations  Total

Fiscal 2003

Interest income $51,486 $97,365 $84 $148,935 $4,737 $(1,926) $151,746
Interest expense (20,312) (54,958) ~ (75,270) (3,932) 1,926 (77,276)
Net interest income 31,174 42,407 84 73,665 805 - 74,470
Non-interest income 13,350 10,429 14,923 38,702 278 - 38,980
Non-interest expenses (41,424) (1,722) (9,382) (52,528) (1,128) - (53,656)
Intersegment revenue 4,888 - 276 5,164 - (5,164) -
Intersegment expense {2,136) - (2,699) (4,835) (329) 5,164 -
Equity income in subsidiaries - - - - 51,566 (51,566) -
Provision for loan losses {4,190) - — (4,190) — ~ {4,190)
Income before taxes $1,662 851,114 $3,202 $55,978 $51,192 $(51,566) $55,604
Total assets as of June 30, $822,681  $2,167,589 $9,746  $3,000,016 $291,760 $(252,308)  $3,039,468
Fiscal 2002

Interest income $46,131 $93,384 $306 $139,821 $2,986 $(1,112) $141,695
Interest expense (22,286) (59,281) {16) {81,583) {2,224) 1,112 (82,695)
Net interest income 23,845 34,103 290 58,238 762 - 59,000
Non-interest income 13,645 3,516 14,070 31,231 19 - 31,250
Non-interest expenses (37,701} (1,225) {9,048) (47,974) (988) - (48,962)
Intersegment revenue 4,982 - - 4,982 - (4,982) -
Iintersegment expense {2,156) - (2,377) (4,533) (449) 4,982 -
Equity income in subsidiaries - - - - 38,444 (38,444} -
Provision for loan losses (2117) - - (2,117) - - (2117)
Income before taxes $498 $36,394 $2,935 $39,827 $37,788 $(38,444) $39,171
Total assets as of June 30, $743,407  $1,693,051 $6,613  $2,443,0NM $236,973 ${195,734)  $2,484,310
Fiscal 2001

Interest income $40,378 $79,300 $ $119,678 $683 $(17) $120,344
Interest expense (23,670) {67,611) (17) (91,298) - 17 (91,281)
Net interest income 16,708 11,689 (12) 28,380 683 - 29,063
Non-interest income 4814 3,126 12,458 20,398 {15) - 20,383
Non-interest expenses {29,990) (624) (7,762) (38,376) (852) - {39,228)
Intersegment revenue 3,422 - - 3,422 - (3,422) -
Intersegment expense (1,777} - (1,645} (3,422) - 3,422 -
Equity income in subsidiaries - - - - 8,666 (8,668) -
Provision for loan losses (2,903) - - {2,903) - - (2,903)
Income before taxes $(9,726) $14,191 $3,034 $7,499 $8,482 $(8,666) $7,315
Total assets as of June 30, $417,912 $1,610,476 $7,749 $2,036,137 $134,216 $(136,647)  $2,033,706
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17. Oriental Financial Group Inc. (Parent Company Only) Financial Information

The principal source of income for the Group consists of dividends from the Bank. As a member subject to the regulations of the
Federal Reserve Board, the Group must obtain approval from the Federal Reserve Board for any dividend if the total of all divi-
dends declared by it in any calendar year would exceed the total of its consolidated net profits for the year, as defined by the
Federal Reserve Board, combined with its retained net profits for the two preceding years. The payment of dividends by the Bank
to the Group may also be affected by other regulatory requirements and policies, such as the maintenance of certain regulato-
ry capital levels. Cash dividends paid by the Bank to the Group amounted to $11,500,000, $8,000,000 and $20,000,000 for the years
ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The following condensed financial information presents the financial position of the Parent Company Only as of June 30, 2003
and 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003:

itionk(Rareny

fom

Compamy )

As of June 30,

{In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $4,556 $950
Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 53,568 43,447
Investment in bank subsidiary, at equity method 182,947 152,929
Investment in nonbank subsidiaries, at equity method 8,896 6,327
Due from nonbank subsidiaries - 63
Other assets 1,303 1,409
Total assets $251,270 $205,125
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Dividend payable $2,472 $2,065
Due to nonbank subsidiaries 61 72
Due to bank subsidiary 1,944 449
Subordinated capital notes payable to nonbank subsidiary 36,083 36,083
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 7,599 -
Deferred tax liability, net 1,019 27
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 412 -
Total liabilities 49,530 38,696
Stockholders’ equity 201,680 166,429
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $251,270 $205,125
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o)
Years Ended June 30,
(In thousands)
Income:
Dividends from bank subsidiary current year earnings $11,500 $8,000 $8,578
Dividends from nonbank subsidiary current year earnings 57 - -
Interest income 2,811 1,874 683
Investment and trading activities, net and others 278 19 {15)
Total income 14,646 9,893 9,246
Expenses:
Interest expense 2,006 1,113 -
Operating expenses 1,128 988 851
Total expenses 3,134 2101 851
Income before income taxes 11,512 1,192 8,395
Income tax benefit (expense) (202) 215 {14)
Income before changes in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 11,310 8,007 8,381
Equity in undistributed earnings from:
Bank subsidiary 39,525 30,151 -
Nonbank subsidiaries 485 293 88
Net income 51,320 38,451 8,469
Other comprenhensive income (loss), net of taxes {7,139) 25,014 {1,691)
Comprehensive income $44,181 $63,465 $6,778

‘Yea-rs”Ended Jun'e'I.!U,b
{In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $51,320 $38,451 $8,469
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings from banking subsidiary {39,525) {30,151) -
Equity in undistributed earnings from non banking subsidiaries (485) (293) (88)
Net amortization of premiums on investment securities 208 26 395
Realized gain on sale of investments {300) - -
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 202 (202) -
Amortization of goodwill - - 18
Decrease (increase) in other assets 99 (746) (557)
Decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities (76) - -
Total adjustments (39,877} (31,366) (232)
Net cash provided by operating activities 11,443 7,085 8,237
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale (18,236) (35,705) -
Redemptions and sales of investment securities available-for-sale 11,367 5,320 4,195
Dividends received from bank subsidiary prior year earnings - - 11,422
Acquisition of and capital contribution in nonbank subsidiaries (1,591) {1,083) (1)
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities (8,460) (31,468) 15,616
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 7,599 - -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 5,086 1,670 396
Net increase (decrease) in due to nonbank subsidiaries, net 52 (184) (10,442)
Net increase in due to bank subsidiary, net 1,485 449 -
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes payable to nonbank subsidiary - 36,083 -
Purchases of treasury stock (2,214) (3,023) (3,535)
Dividends paid {11,395) (10,039) {9,920)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 623 24,956 (23,501)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,606 573 351
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 950 377 25

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,556 $ 950 $ 376
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18. Subssequent Event

On August 29, 2003 the Group filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission for a pro-
posed issue of up to 1,380,000 shares of Non-cummulative Monthly Income Preferred Stock, Series B, at $25 per share, which
was amended by Pre-effective Amendment No. 1 on September 8, 2003. Proceeds from issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock,
are expected to be $33,106,903, net of $1,393,097 of expenses.

The rights, preferences and privileges of the Series B Preferred Stock are substantially similar to the rights, preferences and
privileges of the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock, except as to the dividend rate and optional redemption dates of the Series

B Preferred Stock.
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